Nimish Nagpal & Company

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of
Khanna Paper Mills Limited
(CIN: U74110HR1985PL.C054735)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Khanna Paper Mills Limited (‘the Company’) (CIN:
11741120HR1985PLC054735) which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 315 March 2025, Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of changes
in £quity and Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information
{(hereinatter referred to as “the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its losses and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and
cash flows for the year ended as on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards on Auditing (“SA”™) are further described in
e Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

The Company has invested in Optionally Convertible Zero Coupon Debentures of its subsidiary, Grownd
Realty Private Limited and Khanna Fiber Private Limited. As disclosed in Note 7 to the accompanying
financial statements, no impairment provision has been recognized in respect of this investment as at the
veporting date. The management has represented that the recoverable amount of the said investment could not
5e determined due to complete absence of current financial and operational information from the subsidiary.

Under ina AS 36, “lmpairment ot Assets.” and Ind AS 113, “Fair Value Measurement,” the Company is
required to assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an investment may be impaired
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and to estimate its recoverable amount if such an indication exists. In the absence of access to recent financial
information, management has not been able to perform an impairment assessment or estimate the recoverable
amount of the investment in the subsidiary. Consequently, we were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence to satisfy ourselves regarding the carrying value of the investment of INR 13,970.82 Lakhs
amount in debentures of the subsidiary as at balance sheet date. This matter may result in a material
misstatement of the carrying value of investments and the loss for the year to the extent of any required
impairment loss not recognized. The effects of this matter on the standalone financial statements are material
but not pervasive.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters (‘KAM?") are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is an
unlisted company.

Emphasis of Matter
i. MSME Dues

¢ We draw attention to Note 50 of the standalone financial statements, which describes the
company’s position regarding its obligations under the Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act). The management has represented that there is no
statutory obligation currently imposed on the suppliers of goods and services to disclose their
registration status under the MSMED Act to the recipient company. Consequently, the
identification of amounts due to micro, small, and medium enterprises (MSMEs), as defined
under the MSMED Act, has been based solely on the information available to the company and
the representations provided by the suppliers.

e The management has also stated that, according to past trade practices and conventions, no
claims for interest on overdue payments have been received from suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act. Furthermore, management helieves it is nnlikely that such claims will he made
in the future. As a result, no provision for interest on overdue payments to such enterprises has
been made in these standalone financial statements.

e Management has indicated that any potential liability for interest under the MSMED Act, if it
arises, is not expected to be material to the standalone financial statements. Management has
further stated that any such liability will be recognized and accounted for in the standalone
financial statements when it becomes crystallized.

e Our audit procedures related to compliance with the MSMED Act were primarily based on
reviewing the management’s process for identifying MSME suppliers and evaluating the
sufficiency of the disclosures in the standalone financial statements. We have relied on
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management's representations and the information they provided, as the identification of
MSME suppliers and the amounts due to them is inherently dependent on such information.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

ii. Loan to Wholly Owned Subsidiary

We draw attention to Note 55 of the standalone financial statements, wherein which loans to
wholly owned subsidiary are given. The management of the company has expressed its inability
to confirm whether the loans made to its wholly owned subsidiary, as covered under Section
185(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, are being utilized by the subsidiary for its principal
business activities. Furthermore, the subsidiary has also not provided any information in this
regard. This matter does not impact our opinion on the standalone financial statements,
however, it brings attention to the limitation of the scope concerning the management’s
compliance and reporting on the utilization of loans.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

1ii, Fabrication of Secretarial Records

Company initiated the disciplinary proceedings which are ongoing before the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) Disciplinary Committee (Case No. DC/1083/2024 &
DC/1089/2024) concerning allegations of professional misconduct by the former Secretarial
Consultant of the Company. The matter relates to fabrication of board meeting minutes,
unauthorized filing of statutory forms, and other alleged irregularities during the period 2024-
2025.

The disciplinary committee has considered the prime facie opinion and has agreed that the said
opinion based on the preliminary findings of the institutes disciplinary investigation is that the
Secretarial Consultant is guilty of professional misconduct under clause 7 of part I of the
Companies Secretaires Act 1980.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information other than the standalone financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's

report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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‘When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take actions as required in accordance with
the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect 1o the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
135 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selecticn and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and sstimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’e ability 1o continue as a going concein, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and wsing the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
{ompany or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Reacd of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

The Board «f Directors is also responsible for esiablishing and maintaining adequate and effective controls in
respect of use of accounting software that entails the requisite features as specified by the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, including an evaluation and assessment of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the company's accounting software in terms of recording and maintaining audit
trail (edit log) of each and every transaction and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled and has been
operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has not
been tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements
for record retention.

Anditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standzione Financial Statements

Uhar objectives ave to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free {rom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
m accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
septicism throughout the audit. We also:
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¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disciosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) evaluating the effect of
any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
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. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a.

o

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements of the Company, in place, and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31st March 2025 on
its financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer to Note 48 to the
standalone financial statements.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either
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individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to the notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
respective software:
a. Inrespect of the Company, the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes for the
accounting software.

b. In respect of the Company, in the absence of coverage of audit trail (edit log)
with respect to database level in the independent auditor’s report in relation to
controls at the service organization for accounting software used for preparation
of financial statements, which is operated by third party software service
provider, we are unable to comment whether the audit trail feature of the
database level of the said software was enabled and operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

c. In respect of the Company, its payroll records and stock records the feature of

audit trail (edit log) was not enabled.
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Further, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated, we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.
Additionally, except where the audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled in the
previous year, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention, except for the accounting software used for
preparation of financial statements where the audit trail has not been preserved.

h. With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is not in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The
remuneration paid to directors is in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the
Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For Nimish Nagpal & Company
Chartered Accountants

CA Nimish Nagpal
Partner
Membership No. 515749

Place: Amritsar
Date: September 27, 2025
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements of Khanna
Paper Mills Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report of
even date)

(1) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) ' (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
' quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
assets

(b) ' According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
- examination of the records of the Company, The Company has a program of verification
- to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment in a phased manner over a period of
three years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property, plant and equipment
- were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is |
' reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
- examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other
- than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are -
duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the standalone financial statements are -
held in the name of the Company.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property,
plant and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets or both during the
year.

(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami

- Properly Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a)  The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable, and procedures and coverage as
followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification
between the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventory.

(b)  During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR

- 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company

- has filed monthly returns or statements with such banks. As of the date of the audit report,

- we have not received any response and/ or confirmation with respect to correspondences
made to the Bank for corroborating the quarterly returns or statements being filed by the
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- company with them. Pending such response and/ or confirmation from the Bank, we are
, not able to comment about quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such
banks, being in agreement or not with the books of account of the Company. However,
reconciliation is prepared and presented in the standalone financial statements at Note 58.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company,

a. the Company has made investments which is disclosed in the standalone financial
statements in Note 7, the details of which are as follows:

Balance outstanding as

Name of the Nature Aggregate amount

Company during the year of balance sheet date
Khanna Fibre Private = Equity Shares — Nil INR 1.00 Lakh
Limited 10,000

(Wholly Owned

Subsidiary)

Khanna Fibre Private Debentures — Nil INR 1,485.00 Lakhs
Limited OC-ZCDS -

(Whoily Owned 14,85,000

Subsidiary)

Grownd Crew Equity Shares — Nil INR 1.00 Lakh
Private Limited 10,000

(Wholly Owned

Subsidiary)

Grownd Realty Equity Shares — Nil INR 1.00 Lakh
Private Limited 10,000

(Wholly Owned

Subsidiary)

Grownd Realty Debentures — Nil INR 12,485.82 Lakhs
Private Limited OC-ZCDS —

(Wholly Owned 1,24,85,820

Subsidiary)

b. The Company has provided loan to its subsidiary which is disclosed in the
standalone financial statements in Note 8, the details of which are as follows:

Name of the
Company
Grownd Realty
Private Limited
(Wholly Owned
Subsidiary)

Nature

Loan

Aggregate amount

during the year
Nil
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1. According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has granted a loan to its subsidiary, which is covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the loan granted by the '
Company are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company, as the
loan was given in lieu of an asset which was sold in current financial
year instead of transferring it to the subsidiary company as part of a
demerger arrangement. However, we note that the repayment
schedule and terms of repayment have not been defined as of the
date of this report. The management has represented that these terms
will be defined in due course.

3. In the absence of a defined repayment schedule and terms of
repayment, we are unable to comment on whether the repayment of
principal and payment of interest is regular.

ii. No renewal or extension or granting of fresh loans to settle the over dues of
existing loans is made during the year, Hence, reporting on this aspect is
not applicable.

iii. No loans were granted repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment with respect to promoters and related parties
during the year, Hence, reporting on this aspect is not applicable.

¢. The investments made and loans given so provided as referred to in clause (iii) (a)
and (iii) (b) is not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees and security, the Company has complied with the provisions of sections
185 and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the management of the company has
expressed its inability to confirm whether the loans made to its wholly owned subsidiary, as
covered under Section 185(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, are being utilized by the subsidiary
for its principal business activities. Furthermore, the subsidiary has also not provided any
information in this regard.

According to the information and explanations given to us, for any deposits accepted or amounts
which are deemed to be deposits, the company has complied with the provisions of Sections 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. We further report
that the directives of the Reserve Bank of India are not applicable on the company with respect to |
such deposits.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no Order has been passed by the -
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court
or any other Tribunal, on the company in respect of the aforesaid deposits.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We
have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
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and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination
of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty -
of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been regular in .
deposited during the year by the company with the appropriate authorities.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us. The particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March
31, 2025 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Statute Nature  of | Amount Period to Forum where the dispute is
dues (INR in which the pending
lakhs) amount
relates n R
Custom Denial of 154.74 2002-2005 High Court of Punjab &
Duty DEPB Haryana, Chandigarh
Benefit
Custom 2nd Hand i 54.37 FY 2015-16 | Custom, excise and service
Duty Machinery, tax Appellate Tribunal -
revaluation Chandigarh
Excise Differential 94 .33 FY 2013-14 | Custom, excise and service
Custom duty tax Appellate Tribunal -
demanded by Chandigarh
Department
on Imported
Wood Pulp
destroyed by
fire . |
Excise Demand of ' 228.21 FY 2012-13 = Custom, excise and service
Excise duty | tax Appellate Tribunal -
raised by Chandigarh
i department
on finished
Goods
- destroyed by
; o |8 ; s ;
Service Service Tax  115.89 FY 2017-18 = CESTAT, Chandigarh
Tax Demand on
Ocean
Freight
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Income
Tax

Goods
and
Services
Tax
Goods
and
Services
Tax
Goods
and
Services
Tax
Goods

fand

" Services

" Tax
Income
Tax

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-
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Demand
against
addition
during
transfer

pricing Audit

Demand
during GST
Audit

Demand
against SCN

Demand
against SCN

Demand
against SCN

Demand
against
addition
during
transfer
pricing Audit

5.7542

457.96

113.96

4.05

40.00

0.04156

tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and records examined by us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment

FY 2017-18

FY 2017-18
& 2018-19

FY 2018-19

" FY2017-18 |

FY 2016-17

of interest thereon to any lender during the year,

(b) According to the information and explanations given“ to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful

Commissioner of Income
Tax (Appeals)

Commissioner Appeal,

CGST Jalandhar

Commissioner Appeal,
CGST Jalandhar

Commissioner Appeal,
CGST Jalandhar

Commissioner Appeal,
CGST Jalandhar

" Commissioner of Income

Tax (Appeals)

defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us by the maiiagement, the
Company has obtained terms loans and were applied for the purpose for which the loans

were obtained.
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(d)

(e)

®

(a)

(b)

(b)

(c)
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Accdrding to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet of the Company, we report funds have been raised on short-term basis
by the Company and funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long term

purposes.

According to the information and explanations gii;éil to us and on an overall examination

- of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not
- taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.

_ Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies as defined under
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

~According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our |

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly or optionally convertible

. aebentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

We report that we have neither come across any instance of any fraud by the Company or
on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any
such case by the Management, except for the matter highlighted in point (iii) of Emphasis
of Matter section of our report.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section

- (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form
- ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with

the Central Government.

- There were no such complaints received by the company during the year while determining

the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements under Note no 53. of Notes to Accounts as required
under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures™ specified under Section 133 of
the Act.
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

{(xvii)

(xviii)

(x1x)

(xx)

Nimish Nagpal & Company

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(a)  Based on information and explanations provided to us and our au('lit procgdures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature

of its business.

(b) . Wehave considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
. under audit. B _ _ -
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our exajpinat.lon of the
records of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions W1‘Eh directors or
persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable.

(a)  The Company is not f'equiré_d to be régistére_d' under Section 45-IA of t%le Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable

(b)  The Company was not engaged into any Non-Banking Financing or Houéin:g Finance
activities during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us 'ﬂuring the course of audit,
the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are _
not applicable. '

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the imediatcly preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii)
of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing al the dale of balance sheet as and when they fall due within 4 period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due
(a) ' Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of
- other than ongoing projects, there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section
i 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) of the Order are not
' applicable.
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Nimish Nagpal & Company

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(b)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of
ongoing projects, there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.
(xi) The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of the audit of
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been
included in this report.

For Nimish Nagpal & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 023104N_—__

N 4 Q

X 3
=2f CHARTERED |-
=| ACCOUNTANTS |2

CA Nimish Nagpal Z\ FRN: 023104\ /-
Partner X

Membership No, 515749 WRITSKS:
UDIN:25615F4yqdbm3ek P4 981
Place: Amritsar

Date: September 27, 2025
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Nimish Nagpal & Company

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements of Khanna
Paper Mills Limited for the year ended 31° March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report
of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of sub - section 3 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Khanna
Paper Mills Limited (“the Company™) as at March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial control system with reference to standalone financial statements and
such internal financial controls were operating cffectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control
with reference to the standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. (the “Guidance Note™)

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The Company’s the board of directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”)

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies
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Nimish Nagpal & Company

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the standalone financial statements were established and maintained and whether
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to the standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement in the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system with reference to the standalone financial

atatemente

e Fetiws § 8 Lt B R0

Meaning of internai financiai controis with reference to standajone financial statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to the standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
the standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to the standalone financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
standalone financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
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Nimish Nagpal & Company

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

For Nimish Nagpal & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 023104N

CA Nimish Nagpal
Partner

Membership No. 515749
UDIN: 25515749 ®MSCK

Place: Amritsar
Date: September 27, 2025
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED
CIN: U74110HR1985PLC054735
Registered office: B-26, Infocity-1, Sector - 34,Gurgacn-122002
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
Rs. in Lakhs (Unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Note No LOEY Lol
31 March 2025 = 31 March 2024

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fraperty, Plant and Equipment 2 55,768.67 53,132.33
Right of Use Assets £) 1,654.04 1,620.69
Capital work in progress 4 4,752.56 10,602.70
Other Intangible assets 5 325.86 27.72
Intangible assets under development 6 - 51.30
Financial Assats

Investrments 7 14,059.29 14,057.23

Loans 8 50.00 50.00

Other financial assets 9 781.77 1,228.05
Other non current assets 10 5,275.95 5427.11
Total Non-current Assets 82,668.14 86,397.13
Current assets
Inventories 11 35,233.32 26,964.69
Financial Assats

Investments 12 8823 81.87

Trade receivables 13 21,970.04 13,425.42

Cash and cash equivalents 14 436.13 1,933.47

Bank balances 15 5,143.69 2,815.57

Other financial assats 16 2,623.17 191.52
Current Tax Assets, net 17 620.97 49.24
Other current assats 18 6,696.73 7.757.24
Total Current Assets 72,815.28 53,219.02
Total Assets 1,55,483.42 1,39,616.15
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

CIN: U74110HR1985PLC054735

Registerad office: B-26, Infocity-1, Sector - 34,Gurgaon-122002
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

Rs. In Lakhs (Unless stated otherwise)

1

Particulars Note No : Tt

EQUITY and LIABILITIES
Equity Share Capital 19 2,653.79 2,653.79
Other Equity 20 68,753.89 74,000.91
Total Equity 71,407.68 76,654.70
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 21 14,750.61 15,784.44

Lease liabilities 22 1,387 .57 1,746.14

Other financial liabilitias 23 2,091.73 2,007.09
Provisions 24 1,150.82 1,035.02
Daferred tax liabilities net 25 3,962.94 3,540.86
Other nen current liabilities 26 228.05 334.82
Total Non-current liabilities 23,569.72 24,448.37
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 27 38,988.82 22,051.30

Lease liabilities 28 358.57 136.38

Trade Payables 29

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,729.14 365.13
- total outstanding dues of others 15,381.94 9,223.36

Other financial liabilities 30 326813 3,822.04
Other current ligbilities a1 850.86 1,838.72
Pravisions - current 32 128.56 148.90
Current Tax Liabilities, net 33 - 926.25
Total Current liabilities 60,506.02 38,513.08
Total liabilities 84,075.74 62,961.45
Total Equity and Liahilities 1,55.483.42 1,39,616.15
For & on Behalf of Faor and on behalf of Board of Directors,
Nimish Nagpal & Company
Chartered Accountants i U/AL110HR1985PLCO54735)

Rahul Khanna

Place: Amritsar
Date: September 27, 2025

Place: Amritsar
Date: September 27, 2025
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Chief Financial Officer




KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

CIN: U74110HR1985PLCD54735

Registered office: B-26, Infocity-I, Sector - 34,Gurgaon-122002
Standalone Profit & Loss for the period ended on 31 March 2025

Particulars

Note No

Rs. [n Lakhs (Unless stated otherwise)
For Year ended

For Vear ended

Date: Septernber 27, 2025 Oate: September 27, 2025

Page 3 of 49

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenua From Operations 34 1,90,030.19 2,17,326.33
Other tncome 35 2,865.69 1,057.65
Total Income 1,92,895.88 2,18,383.98
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 36 1,38,259.49 1,26,985.51
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 37 212,77 -
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock in Trade and work in progress a8 -5,986.59 5,004.62
Employee benefits expense 39 7,928.14 8,621.62
Finance costs 40 3,841.62 2,917.14
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4], 6,840.17 6,067.72
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 61 151.12 205.18
Other expenses 42 46,861.69 50,771.230
Total Expenses 1,98,108.41 2,00,573.66
Profit/{loss) before tax {I-11) -5,212.53 17,810.32
Tax expense 43
Current tax -324.46 6,478.08
Deferred tax 400.75 -56.63
Total Tax expense 76.29 6,421.45
Profit/(loss) after tax for the period {III-1V) -5,288.82 11,388.87
Other Comprehensive Incoma
QCI that will not be reclassified to P&L 44 63.13 -222.73
QCl Income tax of itams that will not be reclassified to P&L -21.33 78.12
Tatal Other Corprehensive incame {VI] 41.80 -144.61
Total Comprehensive Income for the period -5,247.02 11,244.26
hEamings per equity share {in Rs.)
Basic 45 -19.93 42.92
Diluted -19.93 4292
For & on Behalf of or and an behalf of Board of Directors,
Nimish Nagpal & Company KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED
Chartered Accountants 4%10HR1985PLC054735)
CA Nimish Nagp 3 Rahul Khanna -F
Partner 515749 Whole Time Director Managing Director
UDIN: 25515749BMSCKF4981 DIN: 08370447 DIN: 0006?17{
: -
Ash mar Jain
Compan Chief Financial Officer
Members
Place: Amritsar Place: Amritsar




KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIM{TED

CIN: U74110HA1985PLCO54735

Registered offica: B-26, Infocity-, Sector - 34,Gurgaan-122002

Statement of change in Equity for the year ended on 31 March 2025

A. Equity Share Capital
Current reporting perlod

Rs. in Lakhs (Unless stated otherwisz)

| Particulars

As at 1 April 2024 2,853.79
Changes in Equity Shars Capital due to Frior Period Errors -
Restated Balance ns at 2,653.79
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year -
As at 31 Mavrch 2025 2,653.79
Previous reporting period Rs. in Lakhs [Uniess stated otherwise)
{ Particutars
As arl April 2023 2,653.79
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to Prior Pariod Errors -
Restatad Balance as at 2,653.79
Chartges in Eguity Share Caphtal during the year -
As at 31 March 2024 2.653.79
B. Othar Equity

Current reparting period

Rs. fn Lakhs (Uniess stated otherwise)

1} »
Particukars Note
Balance as at 1 Agril 2024 21,316.11 52,815.38 38.51 74,000.91
Chenges in Accountlng Policy or Prior Period Errors - - = 3
Restatad balance as at 1 April 2024 21,316.11 52,819.38 as.51 74,000.91
Add: Profit/{Loss) duwing the year - -5,288.861 - -5,368.81
Add: Addition - 2.07 - 2.07
Remeasurament Gaind{Loss) of defined Benefit Plan{net of tax) - - - 39,72 39.72
Total Compre} Income/(Exp ] 21,316.11 47,630.57 40.58 -133.36 66,753.6%
|Balance 25 at 31 March 2025 21,316.11 47,530.57 40.58 -133.28 69,753.89
Qther Equity
Previous reporting period Rs.inLakhs (Uniess stated atharise)
R a2 & Surplus Other © Inc “Total
GeneralReserve|  Retained {Exchange | OtheritemsofOCH |
Earnings differences on
Farticulars Note tranatating the
Investmantsin
Forelgn Subsidiary
Bakance as at 1 April 2023 21,316.11 41,430.52 764 =27 .82 B2,758.65
Changes in Accounting Policy or Prior Parlod Errars - - ] = -
Restated balance as at 1 April 2023 21,316.11 41,430.52 red -27.62 €2,756.65
Met profit/{lass] during the year - 11,522.75 - 11,388.86
Changes due to Prior Period Errors* 63 - -136.88 - -
Add: Addition - 087 - 0.87
Remeasurement Gain/[Loss) of defined Beneft Planinet of tak) - . - -145.47 -145.47
Tokal Campret ive Income/{Exp ] 21,316.11 %2,619.38 38.51 -173.09 74,000.91
Balance as at 21 March 2024 n,316.11 52,919.38 38.51 -173.09 74,000.91
For & on Behalf of o behalf of Board of Directors,
Mimish Nagpsl & Gompany APER MILLS LIMITED
Chartersd Accountants [ HR12B5PLCO54735)
-, -~ r )
Nimish Nagpal M et Singh Rahul Khanna
Partner 515749 Wheole Time Diragtor [
UDIN: 26515749BMSCKFa981 INpR3I70447

Place: Amritsar
Date: Saptember 27, 2025

Place: Amritsar
Date: Saptember 27, 2025
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED
CIN: U74110HR1985PLC054735

Registered office: B-26, Infocity-I, Sector - 34, Gurgaon-122002
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the period ended on 31 March 2025

Rs. tn Lakhs (Unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

Note

For Year ended ForYear ended

No 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year -5,288.81 11,388.86
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 9,840.17 6,067.72
{Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 145.34 -0.45
[Gain}/Loss on disposal of Intangibie Assets - 2.02
{Gain)/Loss on investments measured at fair value thraugh profit and loss -6.35 -21.46
Provisian for Income tax 76.28 6,421.45
Allowances made/(reversed) for trade receivables {net) -5.05 111.60
Impairment loss of ather Non Financial Assets : 114.27
Finance Cost 3,841.62 2,917.14
Interest Income -288.11 -269.12
Unrealised Foreign Exchange [gain] / loss -333.73 -26.48
Operating profit before working capital changes 4,981.35 26,755.56
Adjustment for {increase) f deerease in operating assets
Trade receivables -8,542,71 11,186.20
Other finandal assets -2,073.94 1,157.53
Inventories -8,268.63 -6,305.36
Other assets 1,211.67 1,675.23
Adjustment for {Increase) / decrease in operating liabilities
Trade payables 7.631.41 -5,505.61
Other financial Liabilitias -459.28 -107.15
Other Liahilities -1,296.63 798.35
Provisions 155.52 165.43
Cash genarated from operations -6,671.23 29,769.18
Income tax paid {net) -1.173.53 -2,793.66
Net cash generated by operating activities -7.844.76 26,975.52
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Bank deposits placed -2,239.66 913.78
Purchase of property, plant and equipment -480.64 -2,543.79
Right of Use Asset - -89.25
Furchase of intangible assets -255.83 -76.55
Expenditure fncurred in Capital Work In Rrogress -6,198.75 -15,797.87
Purchase of other Investrment -6,650.82
Praceeds from disposal of praperty, plant and equipment 3,272.78 114.48
Loan and Advancesinet) - -50.00
Interest received 288.22 269.12
Net cash (used in) / generated by investing activities -5,613.87 -23,905.89
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liabilities -494.65 -292.70
Proceeds/{Repayment| from short term borrowings [Net) 17,165.53 «2,061.10
Praceeds/{Repaymant) from long term borrowings{Net) -1,033.83 3,764.48
Finance cost -3,739.64 -2,816.44
Met cash used in financing activities 11,897.46 -1405.76
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents -1,494.35 1,716.99
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,933.47 216.48
Exchange gain loss on Cash and cash equivalents - =
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 439.13 1,933.47
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

CIN: U74110HR1585PLC054735

Registered office; B-26, Infocity-1, Sector - 34,Gurgaon-122002
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the period ended on 31 March 2025
Reconcitiation of Cash and Cash Equivalents with Balance Sheet:

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalents includes
Cash on hand
Balances with Banks

For Year ended 31

March 2025

3.56
435.57

Rs. in Lakhs (Unless stated atherwise)

Far Year ended 31
March 2024

3.56
1,929.51

Movement in Financial Liabilities:

Current Reporting Period Rs. in Lakhs (Unless stated otherwise)
Particulars Long Term Borrowings Shoqiismm Leasg Liabilities
Borrowings

Opening Balance 15,784.44 22,051.30 1,8382.52
Proceeds/{Repayment] from horrowings {Net) -1,033.83 17,165.58

Impact of Forex 36,573.85

Addition during the year 139.45
Finance cost accrued 168.81
Payment of lease llabllites -494.65
Closing Balance 14,750.61 75,790.73 1,746,14

Pravious Reporting Period Rs. int Lakhs (Untess stated otherwise)
Particulars Long Term Bomowings SO T:en'n Lease Liabilities
Borrowings

Opening Balance 12,019.96 24,112.41 =
Proceeds/[Repayment} from borrowings (Net) 3,764.48 -2,061.10
Impact of Forex
Addition during the year 2,021.39
Finanee costaccrued 153.83
Payment of lease liabilities -292.70
{losing Balance 1578444 22,051.31 1,882 52
For & on Behalf of er and on benalf of Board of Directors,
Mimish Nagpal & Company A\ PAPER MILLS LIMITED
Chartered Accountants .1 10HR1985PLCOS4735)
FRN: 02304N {Q

N

ANimish Nagp free Rahul Khanna

Partner 515749 Whole Time Director Managing Director

Place: Amritsar
Date: September 27, 2025

DIN: 08370447

Diarte; September 27, 2025
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1.21

KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Nates forming part of the Standal Fi ial Stat ~

COMPANY INFORMATION

#hanna Faper Mills Limited (“the Company”) is an unlisted public limitsd company incorparated on February 2, 1965 and i= registersd at Registrar of Companies, Delhi.
Khanna Paper Milis Limited's Corporata (dentification Number {CIN} is U741 10HR1965PLC054735. The registared office of the Company is located at B-26, (nfocity-1,
Sactor - 34 Gurgson, Hanrsna-lzzooz India.

The pany is engaged in the busi af d p of recycled, aco-responsible and innovative papers. The Compamy’s plant [ in Aimritsar, Punjab whichis the
largest single [acation plant in the country to use racycled paper waste. The company is an 130 Canitied Public Limited Campany, manufacturing quality paper, board,
newsprint by recycling of waste material, pulp and paper products. The company is one of the leading recytle hased paper manufacturing Company, The company has
bacome the first paper mill in India to produce high quallty writing and printing board from 10046 deinked wood free recovered paper.

These

lone financial for the year ended March 31, 2025, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on September 27, 2025,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation of Standalone fi P

Statement of Compliance

These long financial have heen prepared in accordance with the Indian A ing Stendards (hereinafter refarred to as the Ind AS) as natified by
Ministry of Comarate affairs pursuant to Sachion 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Comganies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant
amandment rules lasued ther=afier, presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedula I to the Companles Act, 2013, to the extent applicable, and Guidance MNote on
Divizion - IMD AS Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 (Revsed January, 2022 Edition) issued by CLECGC- 1CAI

Accounting policies have baen cansistently applied except whars a newly issuad accounting standard | Inltially adopted or & revigion ta an existing accounting standard
requires 3 changs in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

These dalons financial are pr din Indian Fupees ("Rs" or "INA") and 2\l the figures appearingin the dzlone financial ks are rounded off
to the nearast Lakhs with two decimal places in accordance with Para 5 of Division Il of Schedule Hf ot the Companies Act, 2013, excent when otharwise indicatad,

Basis of tand pi i

The dalone financial hava been prepared an the historical cost basis unless otherwisa indicated. Historcal cost is generally based on the fair value of the
£ ieration gwen in exchange for goods and services, Fair Valus is the prics that would be received to sell an agset or paid to transfer a liablity in an orderly trangaction
bety market particip attha date.

Oparating Cycla
The operating cycle is the time gap between the acquisition of the asset for p ing and their realization in cash and cash aquivalents, Based on the natura of pmductsf
activities of the Company and the normal Bime berween acquisition of assets and their restization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has dits op 'y

cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Usa of estimates and judgments

The praparation of the fi il s in conformity with (nd A3 requires the Manag to make esti j Tts and jons. These

nadgments and assumptions atfect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabllitles, the disclosures of contingent assets and
ligbilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and sxpenses during the period,

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Achual results could ditfer from those esti Appropriate changes in esti are mads as
bacomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the esti Ch in asti and jud, are reflected inthe i jal statarments in the period in
which changes are made and, if material, their effects ara disclosed inthe notes tothe i ial ke,

The following are signith g Judge and est in applying the accounting policies of the Company that have the most significant effect on the:

standelane financial statements.

Revenue

The Company’s coniracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple products and services Lo a . R fram ¢ are considered

faor Enition and when the contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the contract, the partias to contract ars committed to perform their
pective ot the contract, and the contract is legally ble. The Company the services promised in a and identifies distinct

perfarmance nblvgatlons inthe contract, Identitication of distinct performance oblgations to ine the daiiverables and the ability of the customer to benafit

independently from such deliverables, and sllocation of transaction price ta thess distinet perfarmance obligatlons involves significant judgment.

The uses p ge of pletion rmethod for fixed price ¢ Use afp aof: |t hod i imation of projectad

projected profits, projected costs, costm completion and the foreseeabla losses, These are rewewed perlodcallyhythe mana.gemsnt and any effect of changss in
estimates is racognized In the perind in which such changes are determined.

ncome Tanes
Significant jud are involved in d ining the provision for income taxes, including ipacted ko be paids for in tex positions
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In ing the realizability of det, i tax assets, I considers whether some portuion or all of the deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The

ultimate realtzation of daferred income tax assets is dependent upen the generation of future taxable Income during the periods in which the temporary differences
b deduchible. Manag considers the schadulad Is of defarred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in

making this agsessmant, Based on the leve! of histoncal taxable income and projectians for future taxable incorme over the peniods in which the deferred income tax
assets are d bt kbl that the Company will realize the benefits of thass deductible diffsrences. The amount of the deferred income tax assats

idered realisable, h . tould be reduced in the near term if astinmates of fiture taxable income during the carry forward peniod are reduced

In terms of Appendix ‘C* otind 45 12 as insertad by Companies {Indian Ac ing Standards) Second Amendment Aules, 2019, w.a.f. 1-4-2019, where the acceptability
of a particutar tax treatment under tax Law is not known unti the relevant taxation autherity or 3 court takes a decision in the future, a dispute or examination of a particular
tax treatment by the taxation authority may alfect the company's accounting for 8 cument or deferred tax asset or liability

Hence, the . i L hethar to considar sach uncertain tax traatment separataly or tagathar with one or mors ather uncertain tax treatments bassd on which
approach better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. While defermining so, the company assumes that a taxation ity ywill i It has a right to
examine and have full knowledge of all related mformation when making thosa inations and thus iders her it is probable that a ion authorkty will accept

an uncertan tax treatment. The company reflects the effect of uncertalnty for each uncertain tox treaiment by using either the “the most likely smount™ or “the expectad
value™ mathods, depending on which method the company expects 1o better predict the resolution of the uncertainty, when it is not probable that the taxation autharity will
accept an uncartain tax treatment,

Recaverability of advances/receivables
At rach balance shest date, based on histoncal default rates observed over expectad life, the 2l it the exp i credit [oss on outstanding receivables
and advances

Deiined benefit obligation {DBO}

Management's estimate of tha DBOQ is basad on a number of eritical underlying assumptions 3uch as standard rates of Inflation, medical cost trends, mortality, discount
rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may signiflcantly impact the DBO amouwnt and the annual defined benefit axpanses, Al
assumptians are gssessed at each reporting date.

Provisions
At gach balance sheet date on the basis of management's judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Comy the requl of p
outstanding warranties and guarantees, Howewver, the actual future outcome may ba different fram this judgement.

against the

Useful lives of depraciable tangible assets
Managernaent reviews the useful tives of depreciable assers at each reporting date. & at March 31, 2025 managsment assezsed thal the useful lives represent the
expected utility of the assets to the Company. Further, there I3 no sgnificant change in the ugeful lives a3 compared to previous year

Useful ives of Intangibde assats
Tha intangible assets are Amortised over the astimated useful life. The sstimated usalfullife and amortisation mathod are reviewed at the end of sach reporting pariod, with

the effect of any changas in astimate baing accounted for on a prospective basis,

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily dstarmine the interest rate Implicitin the lease, theretore, ituses its tal b ¢ rate {IBR] to measure lease lizbilities. The |BRis
the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over 8 similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of 3 similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar econormic ehvl TheillR & reflacts what the Company ‘would have to pay’. which requires estimation whet no
abserveble rates are availahle or when they nesd to ba adjustad to raflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs
[such 23 government sscurity interest rates and S8) MCLR}when availabls.

Recent aCcount g pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments ta the exlating standards under Companles {Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. On 12™ August 2024, MCA notified Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amsndment Rules, 2024 amending the Companies {Indian Accaunting
Standards) Rules, 2015, under ind AS 21, Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 12. The Company has evaluated the impact of this new standard and determinad that there is no material
effect o its standatone i ial

Property, Plant and Equipment [PPE}

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at their cost of acquizition/ ion, net of \ated depreciation and lated impai 1t losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchase price, directly attributable costs for making the assets ready for itsi d use, by ing casts atiel le to isitlon of qualifying asset, up to
the date the asset isready tor its intended uss.

{tems such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing squip t are capitalized as praperty, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of proparty, plant
and equipmant. Otherwige, auch items are classified as mventory.

Subsequent expenditura relatad to an item of property, plant and equipment is includad in the carrying amount only if it increases the future benefits from the existing assat
bayond its previously d of perf anditis probable that future economic benefita associated with the itern will flow o the entity subject to the

cost of tha iterm belng measurad raliably,
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The earrying amount of thase spares that are replaced |a derecognlzed when no luture econamic beneiit are expactad from their use. When the cost of replaced

Spar iSiNg spars is not available, the cost of replacing spare (new spars) is deemed to be the original cost of replaced spare/existing spars for the puipose of
derecognizing
Anitem of praperty, plant and equipment is deracognised upon disposal or when no future ic benefits ars exp d from any use. Any galn or leas arlsing on

recognition of asset Is included in the Statemem of Profit and Loss Account. Mareaver, property plant and equipment which sre not hetd for sals, are idle and na future
ic benefits ara axp d from them are tested for Impairment to provida for cormesponding impairment Loas (if any),

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equip . ding ot each Bal Sheet date is d as capital ad under other non-curment
aazets and the cost ol assets not ready to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-n-progress,
The Company d iates property, nlant and equip on a straight-line as per the useful life prescribed in Scheduls Il to the Compandes Act, 2013 excaptin raspect of

the Plant & Equipment and Boiler & Turbine, in whose case the life of the sesets has beon assessed as under based on technical advice. The charge in respect of periodic
depreciation is derived based on an estimate of an asset’s axpectad useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its lifs. The lifs is based on historical
expenienca with similar assets aswell as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology, The C the usaful life of
property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting perlod. This reassessment may result in changs in depreciation expense m the future periods,

Tha y ceases to depreciate the asset at the earlier of the date when the assst is classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 and the date when the

assetis deracognised. Therefore, depreciation does not cease when the ss=et bacomes idle of is retired from active Use unless the asset is fully depreciated.

Accordingly, the useful lifa of the property, plant and equip is taken as under:
Catagories of Property, Plant and Equipment Uzeful Life

Land Indefinite Lile

Building 3010 60 Years

Plant & Equipment 11 years

Furniture and Flxtures 10 Years

Vehicles ato 10 Years

OHfice equipment 5 Years

End User Devices 3 Years

Boiler & Turbine 14 to 20 Yaars

Elsctrical Equipments 10 Years

Intangible Assats

Intangible assets are stated at costless accumulated isation and i

Devel COBLS afe exp agincurrad urless technical and commercial feasibility of the progect is derr rated, future ic benefits are probable, the

Compeny has an intention and ability to complata and use or sell and the costs can be measured reliably. The costs, which can be capltalized mclude the cost of material,
diract tabor, overhead costs that are directly attributable to prepare the asset for its intended use and the cost of aszets not ready [o use before such dats are disclosed
under "Intangibles under development”.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an 2sget, the ssset is carmied at cost less any accumulatead amortisation and sccumulated impeaicrent
logses. Amartization of the asset begins when d p is and the asset i5 available for use, Amorti p iy ised in tha Statement of Frofit
and Loss unless such expenditure farms pert of cammying value of another asset,

Curing the period of developmant, the asset is tasted for impairment annually, &n intangible assat is derecognized upon dizposal (i.2., al the date the recipient cbtalns
control] or when no future economic benefits are axpectad from Its uss or disposal. Any gain or lass arising upon derecognition of the azaet [salculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carning amount of the assat) is included in the Staternent of Profit and Loss. when the assstis derecognised

Intangible assets are amortized over thelr respective individual esti d useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the dats that they are available for use, The estimated
useful life of an identifizble ntangibie assst is basad o 4 number of Factors, including the affects of abaot i ition, and other ecanomic factors
{such as the stability of the industry, and known tachnological advences), and the level of maintenance sxpanditures required to obtain the expacted future cash flaws
from the asset, Amortisation methods and usetul lives are reviewed parisdically including at 2ach K ial year and, A dingly, the useful iife of the intangible assets is
taken as under:

Categories of Intangibla Asseta Usefinl tife

Computer Saftwara Syears

Trademarks 10 years

Mmpairment - Property, plant and equipment, Intangible Assets and other Non-Financial Assets

Praperty, plant and aquiprment, Intangible Assets and other Mon-Financial Asssts (hersinaiter as “agsats”] are eval d for recoverability wh events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying may nat be s le. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount fi.e., the higher of the fair value

less cost to sell and the valus-in-use) |s determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset doss not generste cozh flows that arz largely Independant of those from
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amountis determinad for the Cash Generating Unit [CGU) to which the asset belongs, YWhere it is not possible to measure falr
value less costs of dispasat because there is no basis lor making a reliabls estimats of the price at which an orderty transaction to sall the asset would take place betwean
rmarket participants at the measurement date under current markst conditions, the company usas the asset's vaive in use as its recoverable amount. Caloulation of velus-
in-uza has considered the following el

(a) an estimate af the future cash flows the company expects to deslve frorm the asset;
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{b) expectations about possible vaniations in the amount or timing of those huturs cash flows;

(c} the time valug of money, representad by the currant market rigk-fres rate of interast;

{d} the price for bearing the uncertainty mherent in the asset; and

(e cthar factors, such as illiquidity, that market participants would reflect m pricing the future cash flows the company expects ta derlve from the asset,

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognizad in tha Staterent of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of

tha assets excoeds the estimated of the asset, Animpak itlossiss din the S of Profit and Loss if there has been a change in the

used to o ine the T ble amount. The carmmying amount of the asset lsincreased to its revised racoverable amount, provided that this smount dees not
excead the carrying amount that would have been d ined [net of any a d depreciation) had na | i loss been ized for the agset in prior years,
Leases

The Company as a lesses

The Company hethera containg a lease, stinception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to conrol the use
of anidentified asset for a period of ime in exchange for ideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right 1o cantrol the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (i} the contract involves the use of an Mentified asset [ii lhe Companyhas substentially all of the aconomic benefits from usa of the asset

through the period of the lease and (i) the Company has the right to direct the use of the assat.

Right of Lse Assets

At the date of commencament of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset [*ROL") and 2 corresponding lease liabity for all leasa arrangements in which it
k2 & lessen, axcept for leases with a berm of twelve months of |2ss (short-tsrm leases) and low value leases, Forthese short-tarm and low value leases, the Company
recognizes the laase pay as ane ting expense on 4 straight-line basis over the tarm of the lease.

As alesses, the Company determinas the [saze term as the non-canceilable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend of terminate the lease, if the use of such
option is reasonzbly certaln. The Company makes an assassmiant on the axpectad lease term on a lease-by-l=ase basis and thersby hether itis r y
certain that any options to extend of terminate the contract will be exerclsed. In evaluating the lease term, the Compeny conslders tactors such as any significant
leasehold improvemeants undariaken over the lease term, casts relating ta the termingtion of the laase and the importance of the underlying asset to company's operations
taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the avalability of suitable al Ives. The lease term in future pariods is reassessed o ensure that the lease
term reflects the current economic circumsatances.

Certain lease srangements include the options to extend of terminate the lease befare the end of the lsase tarm. AOU assets and lease liabilities includs these options
when it is reasonably certam that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets arainitially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease labllity adj i for any lease | made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any inidal direct costs less any lease incentives, They arg subsequently measured at cost less aceurmulated depreciation and
impalrmant losses, ROU assets are depreciated from the date an a straight-line basis ovar the shorter of the leass term and useful lifs of the underlying
asoet, Right-of-use-assets ara i for raco ity whenaver events or changes in ci indt that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Far
the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amaunt {j.e, the higher of the fair value less cast to sell and the value-In-use) ls determined on an individual assst basls
unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are Largely indepandent of those from other assets. In such ca3es, the racoverabla amount is determined for tha Gash

Gensrating Unit [CGLN Lo which the asset belongs, The estimated usaful lives of the assats, as follows:

Category of ROU Usotul life

Land S9years

Bullding -9 years

Plant and Machirery 5 -Gysars

Leasa Liabilitios

The leass liabity is inltially measured ot amortized cast at the present value of the future lease pay The lease pay are discounted using the interast rare
implicitin the Lease or, if not readily i using the 1t borrowing rates In the country of damicile of these leases. Lease liabilitiss are remeasured with a
corresponding adpstrent to the related right-of-use assetif the Company changes itz to whather it will ise an icn or & ination option.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company fs a lessor is classifisd a5 afinance or aperating{ease. Whenavar the terms of tha leasa transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease, All other leasas are classified as aperating leases. Yhen the Company is an intermediate lessor, it
accounts for its interests in the head lsasa and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified a5 a inance or operating leasa by referencs to the right-of-Use asset
arising fram the head lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-ling basis over the tarm of the relevant laase.

Inventories

lmventories includes Raw iats, Wark i Progress, Finished Goods, Ct les, Packing Materials, Coal & Fuel, stores and spares and Stock in Trade are carried at
lower of costs and net reallzable velue,

The cost comprises of 21l costs of purchass (sther than those subsequently recoverable by the entity from tha taxing authorities), and port, handling and other costs
vuws Myt abbiluad-a s n 108 g inllen 9T 39 QNN INBUEAN 10 IAnging b veskoni Lo Uk poovool ousbion wid wondion.
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Met realisable vatue is the esti d selling price in the ordinary course of busil iess the estl costs of completlon and the esti d costs v to make the
sale. Estimates of netrealisable yalus are baged on the most reliable evidence availabla at the lims tha estimates ara mads, of the amount the inventaries are axpected o
reslize. These esti take Into i ion Auctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the period to the extent thet such events
confirm conditions existing at the and of the penod.

The basis of datarmining cost for various categorios of Inventorles is as follows:

- Raw Materials - The costis determined on a moving average basis
Work in Progress - The costis determined on mowing average basis. The cost of raw jals plus ion cost depending upon the stage of completion.

- Finished Goods {including goods in transit): Costis determined on mowving average basis. The cost comprises of cast of raw materials, consumables plus conversion
coat and packing cost

o Process Waste - It is valuad at net realisabls value.

- Storg and spares - The cost is determinad on a moving average basis,

- Consumables - The cost ig datermined on a moving average basis.

- Cosl and Fuel - The costis determinad on a mowing averags basis.

o Stock-in-trade (acquired for trading] - Costis d ined an a moving average basis.

Equity and Dividend Payments

Equity
Share capital represents the nominal value of shargs that have been issuad. Any transaction costs associated with the ssuing of shares are deducted from retained

earnings, net of any related income tax benefits.

Dividend
Annual dividend distribution to shareholders is racagnized as a liabillty in the penod in whnch ths dmdand ig apprwed by the shareholders, Any interim dividend paid is
recognized on approvat by Board of Directors. Dividend paysble and corresp g tax on d is gnized directly in equity,

Financial instrutments

Initial recognition

The Company recopnizes financial assets and Anandial lisbilities when it becomes a party to the provislons of the | Allfinanclal assets and liabilives
arg recognized at fair valuz on initial recognition, except for trade recewablas which ara initially msasured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly
attributabile to the acquisition or fasue of financial assets and inancial liabilitles, which re not at fafr velue through profit ar loss, are added to the fair valus oninitial
recognition. Regutar way purchase and sale of linancial assets are accounted for at trade date.

For the purpase of sut ient . fi | instruments of the Company ars classified into:
(a)l Non-Derivative Financial Instruments and
(b} Derlvative Financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement
MNon-derivative financial instr

Financial assets carried at amostized cost

A financigl assatis sub ly megsured at ized costifitis held within a business model whose objective is to hold the assstin ardar to collect contractual cash
flowys and the contractual terms of the financial asset giva rise on specified dates to cash Rows that are solely payments of principal and Intersst on the primcipal amaunt
outstanding.

Financial assets carried at faw vafue through other

comprehensive income [FYacl)

A financial azsetis subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensiva income if it |s hatd within a business model whose objective i achizved by both
collacting contractual cash Hows and sslling financlal assets and the cantractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thatare solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstznding, The Compary has made an imevocabie slection for some of its investments, which ars classified
a5 equily instraments to presant the subsequent changas in fair valus in other comprehensive Incomi based on its business modal,

Financial assats carrled at fair value through profit of loss (FYTPL)
Afinancial asset, which is not clasaifisd in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries
Imvestment in Subsidiaries is carried at deemed costin the ate financial excopt for i in foreign subsidiaries which are carrled at PYOC).

Financial liabilivies

Financial liabilities are subsequently carrled at amortizad cost using the effective intsrest msthad, except for financiat guarantee contracts which are messured at faic
value thraugh profit or loss. Whare the financial guarantes coniract was issued 0 an unrelated partyin a stand-alone arm's length ransaction, its fair value at nception is
likely ta squal tha premium recaived, unless thers is evidence to the contrary.

Darivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative fi iali such as foreign forward and option contracts to mitigate the risk of changes In exchange rates on foreign
SUITENCY SXpOSUres,
The« party for such B g ly a bank.

CHARTERED
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Financial asaets or financial habilities, tarried at fair value through praiit ar lgss.

This catsgory mcludes derivative financisl asssts or lizbilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although tha Company bali that these derivatives constitute hedges from an econoimic perspactive, they may not qualify for hadge accounting under Ind A5 109,

Fi fall ts. Any derivative that is enher not designated as hedge, or is 50 designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 108, is categonized a5 a financial assst ar
financial liability, at fair value through profit or \oss,

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable ransaction costs are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when incurred.

Subseq to inltial recognition, these darivatives ara measured at fair value through profit of loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses araincludad in otherincame
Assets f labilities i this categary are presented as curent assets / current liabilities if they are sither held for trading or are axpectad to be realized within 12 manths alter
the Balance Sheet date

Cash flow hedge

The Company designates certain foreign exchangs forward and options contracts as cash low hedges to mitigate the risk of foreign exchange sxposure on highly probabls
forecast cash transactions.

The Company does not apply hedge accounting under Ind A5 109, All derivatives are recognisad at fair valua on tha date a derivative contractis entered into and are
subseguently re-maasured at their fair valus at sach reporting date.

Gaing or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are racagnisad immadiately in the Statament of Profit and Loss under *(ther gaing and lossas™ and are
included in profit or logs in the period inwhich they arise

Derecognition

The Campany deracognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash Rows from the financial asset axpire or it transfers tha financial asset, and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109, A financial lisbility (or & part of a financtal Uability) i2 derecognized from the Company's Balence Sheetwhen the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or axpires.

Fair value of financial instruments

In datarmining the: fair value of Its financial instruments, the Company usas a variaty of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at
each reporting date. The methods used to determing fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing modal, market multiples, available quotad market,
prices and dealer quates. All methads of 3ssessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized

The Company classifies the fair value of its financial i inthe following hierarchy, based on the inputs used in ther valuation:

(3] Laval 1: Tha fair value of financislinstruments quoted in actlve markets s based on their quoted ¢losing price at the Balance Sheet date.

(b} Level 2: The fair value of financlal instruments that are not traded in an active markst is detarmined by using valuation technigues using observable market data. Such
valuation technigues include discounted ¢ash flows, standard valuation models based on market parameters for interast rates, yield curves or foreign exchange rates,
dealar quotes for similar nstruments and use of comparable arm's length transactions.

{c) Level 3: The fair valus of tinancial instruments that are measured onthe basis of entity specific valuations using inputs that are nat based on obsarvable market data
{unobservable inputa)

Impairment
The Comg rer izas losg all &3 using the expacted craditlass (ECL) madsl for the financisl assets and unbilled revenues which are not fair valued through profit
or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables and unbill wlth o signifi financing component is measurzd at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other

financial assets, expacted credlt logses are measured at an amount squal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit disk from initial
recognition In which case thase ars measured at lifetime ECL

The Company dstermines the atlowance for credit losses based on historical loss experl iy d to raflzct current and estimated future economic conditions. The
Company considers current and anticipated future economic ditions relating to industries the Company deals with and the countries where it oparates.

For trade receivabiles or any contraciual right ta racaive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scops of Ind AS 115, the Company
always measures the loss allowancs at an smount equal to lifetime expacted credit\osses,

Offsetting of financial instrumants

Financial assets and financizl lisbiities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is @ cumently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amaunts and thera is an intention to satite on a net basis, to raaliss the assets and settle the lsbilities simultaneousty.

Income Tares

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Incoma tax expensa is recognized in net profitin the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent
thatit relates ta itams recognized directly in equity, in which caze Itis recognized In equity or ather comprehensive income. Currentt income tax far current and prior
periods is gnized at the pected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax taws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all ternporary differences anising hetwean the tax hases of assats and liahilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are revisowsd at each reponting data and are reduced ta the extent that itis no longer probabile that the related tax benefit will
be realized.

The tax jurisdiction for the Company is lndla. Signifi j are invoivad in determining the pravisian for incomea takes including jud on whether tax positions

are prabable of being susiained in tax ments. A tax can involye complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time pariods.
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Notes forming part of the Standal Fi lal 5t

Deferred incoms tax assets and liabiities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been ted or ively d by tha Bal Sheet date and ars
expected to apply to taxable income in the vears inwhich thase temporary differences are expected to be recoverad or settlad. The effect of changes in tax rates on
deferred income tax sssets and liabilities is recognized as income or axpensa in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactrnent date.

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets k dependant upon the gensration of future taxable profits during the periods in which those temporary differences and tax
loss carry forwards become deductible. The Company considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected futurs taxable income in making this
The of the tax assets considerad realisable, howeyer, could be reduced in the near termif estimetes of future taxable mcoms during the

carry-forward perlod are reduced.
The Company offsets current tax zssets and current tax liabilitiss; deferrad tax assats and deferred tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable nght to set off the
recognized amounts and where it Intends either to settle on a net basis, or ko realize the asset and settle the liablty simultansously.

Pravisions

Provisions are recognized whan the ¥ has a present chlipation {legal or ¢ ive) a5 a result of past event and it is probable that the company will be required to
sefttle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of atligation.

Tha amount recognized as a provision is the bast astf of the consideration required to settls the present obligation at the end of the reporting pericd, taking into

account the risks and uncertainties surounding the obligation.

If the eHect of the time value of monay is material, provisions are discounted 10 reflect its presant value using a current pratay rats that reflects tha current rarkat
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting is used the increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is
racognized as finance cost.

Onersus contracts
Provigions for oneraus contracts ara recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company fram a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of
mesting the future obligations under the . Provisions for esti d losses, if any, on incomplete cortracts are recorded in the period inwhich such losses become

probable hased on the astimated aforts or costs to complata the contract. The provision 15
measured at the present value of the lower of the sxpected cast of terminating the cantract and the expectad net cost of continuing with the contract. Befora a provigion is
established, the Company recognizes any knpairment loss on the assets associatad with that contract

Revenue Racognition

The Company derives primarily from sale of gonds, i.e. papar, board, newsprint by recyeling of wasta matarial, pulp and paper products and any servicas

incidental to sale of goods. The Company applics judgement to determing whethsr each product or senvices promised to a custamer are capable of being distinet, and are
distinct m the context of the contract, if nat, then the promised product of sendcas are combined and accounted as a single performancs obligation.

R from are considerad for recogntion and measurament when the contract has been approved in weiting, by the parties, to the contract, the

parties to contract are committzd to perform their raspectiva obligations under the contract, and the cantract is lsgally snforceable. Ravenua is recognized upon transfer
of control of promized

products or services [*p & obligations”) to inan amount that reflects the wderation the Campany has r dor exp ta raceive in exchange

for thase products ar services ("transaction price""), When there is uncertainty as to collactability, ravenue recognition is postponed until such uncertamty s resolved,

The Company the services promised in a contract and idsntifigs distinct performance obligations in the contract. The Company atlocatas the transacion price to
each distinct performance obligation based on the relative standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best
evidence ai its standalone selling price, In the absence of such avidance, tha primary method usad to astimate standalens selling prica is tha expecied cost plus a margin,

under which the Company astimates the coat of satlsfying the perfarmance oaligation and then adds an appropriate margin based on similar services,

Far sach parf: bllgar: tiad over dme, the company recognises revenus aver tims by measuring the progress towards I tisfaction of that
pen‘onnance obl|gat|on The company applies single method of measurmg progress for each pert e abligati tistied over e and the company applies that

d & ly to similar par abligations and in simiar clrcumstances, At the end of each reporting period, the company re-measuras its prograss towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligatlon satisfied over time.
Methods that can ba used to measura company'a progress towards pl tisfaction of a pert ¢ obligats isfied over time inclugde cutput methods and
input methads. Output methods recognize revenus onthe basis of direct measuremeants of the valus to the customer of the goods ar senvices transferred to date relative

to tha remaining goods o sanvices promised under the contract, Cutput methods includa mathods such as surveys of perfformance completed to date, sppraisals of

results achiavad, milestones reachsad, ime elapsed and units prod or units delr d, Input methods recognize ravenue on the basis of the entity's efforts of inputs to
the satisfaction of & pert bligation (for ple, resources consumed, labour hours expanded, costs incumed, time elapsed or maching hours usad) relativato
the total expected inputs to the satlsfaction of that perit obligation.

The transaction price of goods sold is net of variable consideration on of trade discounts and rebates offered by the Company as part of the conlract. Amounts

disciosed as revenue are net of retums and allowances, The Company collects goods and services tax on behalf of the gowemmant and therefore, these are not economic
benetits flowing to the Company. Hence, these are excluded from the revenue. Variable consideration includes trade discounts, volume rebates and incentives, efc.

The Company the vari h ion with raspect to above based on an anelysla of accumulated historical axperience, The Company adjusts estimate of
ravenus gt the earlier of when the most likely amount of consideration expectad to ba raceived changes or when the congi ion becomes fixed
Conkract Cost

CHARTERED &

ACCOUNTANTS f—j
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Notes torming part of the Standatona Fi jal Stat t

The company recopnizes as an asset tha incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer if the entity expects to recover those costs. The incremental Costs of
obtaining a contract are those costs that the company NCINS to obtain a contract with a customer that itwouid not have incurrad if the contract had not been obtained,

Costs to obtatm & contract that would have been i d regardless of whether the contract was obtained shall be recognized as an exp when incurrad, unless those
costs are sxplicitly chargeable to the cust regardless of whether the coniract is obtained,
A5 a practical expadient, the company recognizes the i tal coats of [ning a contract as an expense when incurred if the amortisation peniod of the asset that the

enity atherwigse would have recognized is one year or less.

Sale of Gaods and supply of incidental services

Revenue from sale of goods and supply ofincidental services to sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods |s lerred to the on satistaction of
performance obllgat The per igations as per ¢« with are fulfllled atthe time of dispateh or delivery of goods depending upan the terms
agreed with customer.

Interast Income

Interestincome is recognized using the sffective interest mathod

Dividend Incorme

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is astablished

Insuranca Claims

I clalms ars

d when thers exists na significant uncertalnty with regards to the amounts to be reallsed and tha ultimate cotlection thereof.

Forgign currency

The dalane 1| i t af the Company ars presentad in Indian Rupees (“2* or “INR" or "Rs"), which is the functional currancy of tha Comgany and the
presentation currency lor the i i

Int preparing tha standalone financial iona in ie other than the Company’s nctional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the date of the iransaction. At the and of sach reparting period, ryitems denomi d [n forelgn jesarara lated at the rates pravailing at the end of
the raporting period. Men-monetary items camied at fair valus that are d inated in fareign ies are re-translated atthe ratas prevailing on the date when the faic

value was detarmined. Non-monstary items that are measured in terms ot historical costin a foreign cumency are not translated

Exchangs diffsrences arising on the re-translation or sattlenent of other monstary items are included in the statement of prafit and loss for the period

Other Comprehensie | net of taxes includes b \ation diffsrences on non-monetary financial assets measured at fair value at the reporting date, such as equities
iffed as financial i and at lair value through other comprehansive income (FYOCI),

Government Grant

The Company recognizes go grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them shall be complled with, and the grants will be
racewad. Government grants related to assets are treated as deferrad income and are recognized in the nat profit in the Statement of Proft and Loss on a systamatic and
rational basis over the useful life of the asset. Government grants related to revenue are recognized on a systernatic basis in the net prolitin the Statement of Protit and
Logg over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they ar intended to compensats,

Employee Benefits

The Company has schemes of employses beneffts such as Provident fund, Gratuity and Comp at {leave I which are dealt with as under:
Defined Contribution

Provident fund is the defined it t The contribution to thia scheme is charged ta the Statement of Proflt and Loss of the year in which contribution to such

scheme become due and when services are renderad by the employees. The Company has no obligation other than the contribution payabla to the provident fund. If the:
contribution payable to the schems for services received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already pald, the deficit payable to the schamea ls
recognised as a liabillty after deducting tha contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid sxceeds the contribution dus for services receivad befare the balance
sheet date, then excass is recognised as an asset to the stent that the pre-payment will lzad o, for e, a ion in future t or a eash refund.

Defined Benefit Pan

The Companiy provides for gratuity, o defined benefit retirement plans covering eliglble emplayees. This plan pravides for lump-summ payment to vested employees at

rati , death, incap of termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of smployment with the Company.
These Dafined Bensllt Plans are unfunded.

Uabillties with regard to these defined benefit plana are determined by actuartal valuation, performed by an external actuary, et each Balance Sheet date using the
projected unit eredit mathod. These dafined benefit plans sxpose the Company to actuarial nisks, such as langevity risk, Intarest rate risk and market risk.
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ok ¥ oy

\,—/.

Page 14 of 42 N




1,183

1.18.4

119

1.20

in

122

KHANMA PAPER MILLS LIMITED
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Notes forming part of the St F

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a definad benefit planinits Balance Sheet as an asset or liabRity. Gains and lossas through remeasuraments of the nat
defined banefit labiity/ (asset) are gnized in othar p ive income and are not reclassified to profit orloss in subsequent periods. The actual return of the
portfolia of plan azsets, in excess of the ylelds computed by applylng the dk rats used to tha defined benefit obligation is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments is recognized in net profit in the Statement of Frofit and Loss.

Short-term smployee benefits

Tha undiscounted amount of short-term employes benefits expected to pe paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are gnised on an undi d
accrual basis during the year when the ernployees render the sendces. These benefits include performance incenive and compensated absences which are expected to
ocour within tyelve months after the 2nd of the perlod in which the emptoyes randears the related services.

Long-term employee banefits

Compensated absancas which are not expected to occur within twelve montha after the end of the penod in which the employee renders the related service are
recognised a3 a lishility at the present valua of the defined benaiit obligation as at the Batance Shast date, The cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit rmethod, with actuanal valuations being carried aut at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and lossas are recognisad in the Statament of Profit and Loss in
the periad in which they occur, The Company presents the entire l2ave lisbility as current iiability, since it does not have an unconditlonal nght to defer its settlernent for 12

months after the reporting paricd.

Borvowing Costs

Borrowing costsinclude Interast and amortisation of ancillary costz dinrelation to bo ings. Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualiling assets,
pertaining to the period from commencement of actlvitias relating to construction/develapment of the qualifying asset upto the date of capitalisation of such assst are
added to the cost of the assats. Qualifying assat is one that necessarily takes substantial pariod of time to get ready for its ded use. B ing cost also inclyd
exchange differences to the extent regardad as an adj to the bo ing costs, & samed on the temporary imestment of specifle borrowings for
gualifying assets pending their expanditure, = deducted fram the bomowing costs sligible for capltalisation. All other b ing costs are recognised in tha Statement of
Pratlt and Loss in the periad in which they are ingurrad

Earnings par share

Basic Eamings Per Share is computed by dividing the net proflt for the year attributable to the equlty shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of
aquity shares outstanding during the period and tor all period presented is adjusted for evants such as bonus issue that have changad the number of equity shares

t ing without a ponding change n rescurces.

Diyted Earnings Per Share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year attributabla to the equity shareholders as adjusted for dividend , interest and other charges to
expense or mcoms (net of any attdbutable taxes) relating ta the ditutiva potentjal equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for dervmg
tiasic eamings per share and the weighted average number of agquity shares which could have bean isauad on the conversion of il dilutive patentiol equity shares. .

Potential shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decraase the net profit per share from continuing ordnary op

Segment Reporting

The Company identHizs prmary segments based on the dominant source, naturs of risks and returns and tha internal organisation and 4 structure, The
perating sag are the segr for which saparate o i ion is availabla and for which operating profitiass are eval | segularly by the chief

operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate andin ing perf

Ciperating sepments are reportad in a manner conslstent with the mtemal reporting provi to the Chief Operating D ion Maker, Chiet Operating Cecieion Maker

reviaw the perfarmance of the Company according to the natura of prad I factured with sach seg X inga gic busi unit that offers differsnt

products and serves different markets. The lysis of ger hical i3 based on the locations of customers.

Prior Period [tems

Those ltems of Income / Expenditure which arise in the currant period as a result of srrors or amissions in the preparation of Financial Statemsnts of ona ar more prior
Years, exceading 0.1% of previous year Gross Tumaver, n each case are treated as material priar period iterns and are corracted retrospectively except to the extent that
Itis impracticable to datermine either the pariod-spec|fic effecta or the cumulative effect of the arror,
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KHANMA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

mn
iy

Notes forming part of the Stand

3 Richt of Use Assets Rs. In Lakhs
|Particulars Leasehaold Land Plam: and Building Tatal
Machinery
Cost as ar LApril 2024 104.19 1,224.60 797.48 2,125.28
Addition 189.45 = 189.45
Disposals - = = -
Cost as at 31 March 2025 104.1% 1.414.08 79748 2.315.73
Accumuiated amortisation as at 1 April 2024 0.42 236.97 €5.80 30559
Armortisation charge for the year 1.05 265.51 Bo.53 356.10
Reversal on Disposal of assels - = = =
[Accumulated amortisation a3 at 21 March 2025 1.67 504.48 15534 661,70
Net Carrying Amount a3 at 31 March 2025 10231 0857 842,15 1,664.04

Pravious Year*®

Plantand

Particulars Leasehold Land Building
Machinery

Costasat I Apnit 2023 15.64 - - 16.64
Additjon B3.54 1,224.60 797.49 2,110,684
Disposals - - o -
Cost as at 31 March 2024 104.18 1,224.60 79249 2,126,208
Accumulatad amonisation as at 1 April 2023 - - = -
Amortisation charge for the year 0.42 238.97 65.80 305,59
Reversal on Disposat of assets = = = =
Acturnulated amortisation as at 31 March 2024 0.82 238.97 §5.80 305.5%
Wet Carrying Amaunt as at 31 March 2024 163.37 80%.643 TILES 1,820.69
“Refar Mote 63 for changes due 1o prior period errors

4 _Capital work in arograss RAs.in Lakhs
Fartciors
Dpening Balance 10602.70 442712
Agd: Addition during the year 6,198.75 15,797.87
Less: Capitatised during the year 12,048.90 9,622,290
Closing Balanee 4,752.56 10,602.70

4.1 Capital Wark-in-Progress Ageing Schedule

Current raporting pariod Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

Projects in prograss
Projects tampararily suspanded

Amount in CWIP for 2 period of

1-2Years

Less than 1 year

2-3Years

More than 3 Years

Pravious reporting period

Particulars

Projects in propress
Prajects temporarily suspsnded

Amount ln CWIF tor a period of

1-2 Vears

Less than 1 year

6,269.95

3,732.75

2-3 Years

Move than 3 Years

As. in Lakhs

10,602.70

4.2 Oisgl far Projact Overd
Current reporting periad

of excecded its budpeted cost

Particufars

23-24 UPGRDANSTRUMENT

Project Stalus
Less 1han 1 year

To be Completed

1-2¥ears
1,773.18

2-3Years

fs. in Lakhs

More than 3 Years

Previous reparting periad

Particulars

23-24 UPGRD-NSTRUMENT

Projeci Status
Lassthan 1 year

1-2Vears

Tobe Completed

Z-aYears

As. in Lakhs

Mare than 3 Years

The company does not have any project under capltal wark in progr

31, 2024 except the projects disclosed above

4
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Naotes forming part of the St

5 Other Intanzible assets R5. in Lakhs

| Particulars a o
Costasarl Apnl 2024 1.18 1,073.24 1.074.41
Addition 191 0521 a07.13
Dizposals - - -
Adjustment - - -
Cost as at 31 March 2025 .09 1,378.45 1,381.54
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2024 0.06 1,046.62 1,046.69
Amartisation charge for the yaar 0.26 B.73 B89
Reversal an Disposal of assets - - -

| Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2025 0.33 1,055.35 1.055.88
Net Carrying Amount a5 at 31 March 2025 2178 42310 325.86
Previous Year Rs.in Lakhs
Particulars ade ritwara Ot 2
Costas at 1 April 2023 - 1,387,397 1,397.37
Addition 118 24.07 25.2%
Disposals - 34821 e
Adjustrment - - -
Gost a5 at 31 March 2024 118 1,073.24 1.074.41
Accumulated amertisation as at 1 April 2023 - 1380489 1,380.65
Amortisation charge for the year 0.08 121 12.19
Reversal on Disposal of assets - 346,18 24618
Accumulated amortisatlon as at 31 Mareh 2024 0.08 1,848.82 1,048.89
Met Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2024 110 28.62 072

6 Intangible assets under davelopment Rs. in Lakhs

| Particulars &g at 31 March 2025 452t 31 March 2024
Opening Balance 51.30 -
Add: Addition during the year - 51.30
Less: Capitalised durlng the year E1.20 -

| Closing Balance - 51.30

The company daes not have any project under intanginle assets under
31,2025 and March 31, 2024

orf has

its cost comp

ta its original plan as on March

7 Investmenis - non current Rs. In-Lakhs
q As at Az at

A IE 31 March 2025 31 March 20249

Investment in subsidlary carried at cast 12,973.42 13,573.82
- Subsidiaries owned in India

Investment in subsidiary cartied at fair value through OCI B5.47 B3.41
- Subsidl owned outside India

Total 14,059.29 1405724

7.1 Details of Investmiants
Mama of Entlty No of Shares/Units Current Year No of SharesiUnits Previous Year
n in Equity In
In Subsidiary Company

Khanna Paper Inc.iwholly owned subsidlary incorporated in USA)
Equity Shares of USD 1 2achifully paid)

Grownd Realty Private Limired*

Equity shares of INR 10 eachifully paid-up)

Khanna Fiber Private Limiteg

Equity shares of INR 10 each(tully paid-up)

Grownd Crew Private Limited

Equity shares of INR 18 eachifully paid-up}

Invagtments In Debentures or Bonds

Growrd Realty Private Limited*

Optionally Convertible Zero Coupon Debentures each of Rs, 100
Khanna Fiber Private Limited

Optignally Convertlble 2erc Coupon Debentures each of fis. 100

1,00,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

10.900.00

1,24,85,820.00

14,85,000.00

1.00

1.00

12 486.62

1,485.00

1,00,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

1,24,85,620,00

14,85,000.60

a3l

1.00

100

100

12,485.82

1,485.00
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KHAMNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Notes torming part of the Standal Fi ial Stat Ll

Aggrogate detalls of Investment

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

Aggregate amount of quoted Investment a3 at the end of the year
Market value of quoted investments
Aggregate value ol Un-quoted investments

14,059.30 14,057.22

Prowision for diminution in value of i

*The stalutary auditors ot the subsidiary have identified a fraud

ting to INR 8067 crores for the previous year 1.e, the year ending March 31, 2024,

¢ could nat assess recoverability amauynt for impairment testing due 1o non availability of

*Dunng the financial year, there were specific indicators of impai

f | and op i ion. Thus, no loss has been Recagnised.

8 Loans - non current financial assats Re. in Lakhs
ki 31 M:rscI:IZOZS a1 M:rsc:tzoza
Loens to related parties

Unsecured whith have significant increase m credit risk 50.00 50.00
Tatal 50.00 50.00

Aggregata datails of loans

Rs.In Lakhs

Particulars

Asat31 March 2025 | Asat 31 Marchi 2024 |

Abave includas due from:

50.00 50.00

‘Wholly Ovmied idiary-Grovwnd Realty Private Limired
Total 50,00 30.00
9 Other financial assets - non currant Rs. in Lakhs

. As at As at
EGEIE 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Sacurlty depogits 855,14 1,012,895
Bank depasits with more than 12 months maturity 12563 215.09
Tatal T3L.77 1,228.05

*Bank Deposits are sarmarked with the Banks for obtaining Bank Borrowlngs

** Sacurity Deposils refers to amount given to Yendors under contractoal terms a3 per normal course of bust which are exp d to be after twelve months from the raporting
period,
10 Other non current assets Rs. in Lakhs
As at As at
Pardculars 31 March 2025 31 March 2034
Capital advances
Related Parties 3,797.83 2,797.83
Others 1,450.70 1,597.79
Bal with g th 1592 15.92
Prapaid expenses 11.50 2557
Total 5.275.95 5.427.11
11 |nventories Rs. im Lakhs

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Raw maternals 12,781.34 17,242.62
Work-in-prograss 1,931.11 363,74
Finishad goods 5,744.01 1,324.28
Procass Waste - Q.52
Consumptian of Storas & Spares 6,340 84 5,570.76
Packing Matarial 285.11 29241
Coal & Fuel 2,150.92 217039
Total 3523332 26,964.69

“Raw Matertals includes Goods in Transtt ol INR 2753.14 Lakhs (Previous Year INR 377,78 lakhs)

**Finished Goods includes Goods in Transit of INA 2578 38 lakhs {Previcus Year INR 503,57 Lakhs)
"r*5tores & Spares end Consumables includes Goods in Transit of IMR 586 45 lakhs [Previous Year INR 184,61 lakhs)

“***Coal & Fuel includes Goods in Transit of INA 12,90 lakhs (Previous Year INR 73.60 lakhs)
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Standal Fi ial Stat ¥:

12 [nvestments - aurrent

Rs-In Lakhs

As at A at i
st
Investment in odirers carrled at Fair value through profit or losa

Mutual Funds 8a.23 6167
Total 83.23 £1.87
12.1 Current Investments Rs. in Lakhs
Hame of Entity No of Units Currant Year No ofiUnits Previdus ifgat
Carrlad at fair value through profit of loss {(FYTPL)
Unquoted Investments
Investments in Mutuad Funds
3) Sundaram Large and Mid Cap Fund- Regular Growth {LMGP}
MAVY as on March 31, 2025 |5 INR 78.6662 each unit (Previous Year INR 72.8824) 81,008.66 63.79 81,002.86 58,10
b) Sundaram Agarassive Hybrid Fund - Regular Growh (SBGP)
NAM as on March 31, 2025 Is INR 152.3423 each unit {Previous Year INR 141.9701) 16,042,023 24.44 15,042.03 277
Azgregata detalls of investment Rs. i Lakhs
Particulars Ais at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Aggregate marketvalue as at the end of the year: &81.687
Market value of quoted investmenis =
Aggregate value of Un-quoted investments E51.87
P lon for invalue of i -
13 Trade receivables - current As. in Lakhs

As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Unsecured, considerad good 21,920.49 13,388.59
Unsecured which have significant increase in credit risk 255,57 27090
for E: d Credlt Losses -206.02 -211.47

Total 21,970.04 13,425.42
“Trade Receivahle Rs. In Lakhs
Partiars
Above includas dye from:

Entitias where KMP has significant influence™ 32.96 41.11
Total 3296 4191
Trade Recgivables Ageing schedule Rs. in Lakhs

Outstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than & Total
& months-1year 1-2 years 2-3yRars Mere than 3 years
manths

Undi: d Trade

-considered good 14,672.25 5,986.75 147.56 52.88 .01 21,920.49

=which have signilicant increase
in creditrisk - - - - -

-credit impaired c - - -
Disputed Trade receivables

-considerad gond - - - - - - -

-which have signiflcant incregse
In credit risk - 28.27 22817 313 255.57

-gredit impaired . s = = T = =
Sub Total 14 872.25 5,988.78 187.56 79.15 22617 12,14 22.176.06
Unbilled - considered gaod =
Unbillan - which have significant increase in credit risk -
Unbilled - credit impaired -
Allowance for Expected credlt losges -206.02
Total 21.970.04
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

ial Stat

Nates farming part of tha Stand

For Previaus Year

Ouistanding for following per|ods from due date of payment

Rs. in Lakhs

Partlcylars
B &months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3yeais More than 3 years
months
f d Trade
-considered good 777715 5.460.45 50.81 4107 - 2711 13,265.59
-which have significent increase
int credtt sk - - - -
-credltimpaired - - - -
Disputed Trade receivabias
-Considered good - - - = o s
-which have signihcant increase
I eredie risk - 41,59 22617 313 - 270,88
scredit Impaired < = & . 2 = -
Suhb Total 777745 5,469.45 92,40 2687 25 313 2711 13.636.49
Unbllled - considered good -
Unibilled - which have signilicant increase in credit rick -
Unbilled - credlt Impaired -
Allowanee for Expected credit losses -211.07
Totsl 13,495.42
*Balance includes amount of SRM Recycling Private Limited of IMR 32 96 Lakhs {Previous Year INR 22 42 Lakhs) which ceased to be a related party from May 22 2024)
14 Cash and cash 2quivalents s, in Lakhs
Az at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balances with Banka 435.57 1,529.91
Cash on hand 3.58 .56
Total 439.13 1,933.47
15 Bank balances other than Cash and cash squivalents Rs. In Lakhs
As at As at
Particul
DATETS 31 March 2025 31 March 2029
Earmarkad halances with bank 514380 2,815.57
Total 5,143.69 2,315.57
lteompnses of fixad deposits earmarked with the Banics for abtalamg Bank Borrowings.
16 Other financial assets - current As. in Lakhs
| parti As at As at
culars 31 Warch 2025 31 March 2029
Secunty deposits 481.66 163.37
Other receivables 3876 23.85
Insurance Claim Recoverable 2,122.35 4.13
Interest Recoverable - 017
Tatal 2.623.17 151.52
17 Current Tax Assets, net As. Inf Litkhs
As at As at
Particul
— 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
In¢ome Tax Refund Receivable 620.97 40.03
TS Receivable - a2
Total A20.97 49,24
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Nates torming part of the Standal Fi ial 5t
Gther current assets As. i Lakhs
Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 iarch 2024
aal with g iti 1,745.23 2377.31
Advances to suppliers 465111 5.004.04
Prepaid expenses 26187 352 85
Salary Advances 26.72 23.04
Tatal 6,696.73 1,757.24
Equity Share Capital Bs. in Lakhs
. &g at As at
e 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Authorised Share Capital
45000000 (PY - 45000000] Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each 4,500.00 4,500,400
Issued, subscribed & fully paid up
26537945 (PY - 26537245) Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each 2,653.79 2,653.79
Total 21,653.79 2,653.79

Reconciliation of Shara Capital

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Particulars Number of Sharas Amopunt Humber of Shares Amaunt
|R 5 in Lakhs) {R=in Lakhs)

Opening Balance 2,65,37,945.00 2,653.79 2.65,37,945,00 265379
Changes due Lo pries partad armar & =
Issued dunng the year = - =
Adlustrent - 3 = =
Daletion = = - .
Closing batance 2,65,37,84%.00 2,633.79 2,65,37,545.00 2.853.79

Rights, preferences and restrictinns attached to shares
Equity Shares: The Company has ane class of equity shares. Each sharehslder is etligible lor one vote per share hedd. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o the
approval of the shareholders In the ensuing Annuzl Ganeral Mesting, except |n case of interim dividend. |n the event of liquidation, the equity sharsholders are sligible to receive the

remaining assets of the Company aftar distribulion of all pref i . inp ian 1o their '

Equity Shara holder holding more than 5%

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Name of Share Haldar
HNo of Shares *o o1 Shareholding No of Shares % ot Shareholding

Mr. Brij Mohan Khanna -

Mr. Rahul Khanna 397.00
Mr. Saursbh Khanna* 09,72, 201.00
Mrs. Reny Khanna* 38,07,245.00

Brl Mahan and RamA Khanna Family Trust 1,37,57,259.00
(Sigriiticant Beneficial Ownershlp held by Mr, Rahul Khanna)

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Mams of Promotor : o. of Share af 1

M. Brlj Mohan Khanna Equity 3 = *
Mr. Rahul Khanna Equity 39700 C.00 -
Mr. Saurabh Khanna Equity £9,72,301.00 0.34 -
Mrs, Renu Khanna® Equity 39,07,945.00 0.14 -

Previaus Year

Name Lo Bramctic Ui sl N of Shares v af tatal shares GuCtaneaHuningihe
Equity/Prefarence

#r. Bnj Mohan Khanna Equiy - - -0.00

Mr. Rahul Khanna Equity 397.00 0.00 -0.00

Mr, Saurabh Khanna Equity £9.72,301.00 034 0,00

Mrs. Renu Khanna Equity 34,07,945.00 0,14 -0.00
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Staadal Fi ial it:

Unpaid Calls

As per records of the Company, ne calls remain unpaid by the directors and offlcers of the Company as on 21st March 2025
Farfaiture of Shares

As perf records of the Campany, no shares have been forfeited by the Company during the year.

* The voting nghts of 89,72,201 equity shares held by Mr. Saurabh Khanna have been freezed by the Board of Directors in its board meeting held on 14.04,2025, However the same has not

been given effect 1o keeping Inlo consideration the interim order of NCLT maintaining status que as on December 19, 2024

* Quiof the otal 38,07,945 equity shares held by Mrs. Renu Khanna, the voting rights on 36,07,945 shares were freezed by the Board of Directors in the board maeting held on 22,05.2024

ahd the sama has been subsequently approved by the sharehatders in the EGM held on 17.08,2024.

For the remaining 2,00,000 shares of Mrs. Renu Khanna the voting rights were freeged by the Board of Directors in the board meeting held on 28.12.2024,

2(] Other Equity

Rs. m Lakhs

General Reserve 21,316.11 21,316.11
Retained garnings 47,530.57 52,819,339
Exchange i on ing the n Forelgn idiary 40.58 33.51
Cther items of OCI -133.36 -173.02
Tatal £3,753.39 74,000.91
Mavarhent of Othar Equity Rs, in Lakhs
As at Mg at
|Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
General Reserve
Opening Batance 21,316,11 21,316.11
Add: Transfer from P&L
Less: Delaton
{Add)/Less: Adjustment
Closing Balance 21,316.11 21,316.11
Retained Eamings
Balance at the baginning of the year 52,819.38 41,430.52
Add: Profit{Loss) during the yesr -5,296.81 11.326.86
Less: Appropriation
Balance attha end of the year 47,530.57 52,419.38
Exchange diff on ing the i in Forelgn Subsid
Opening Balance 38.51 37.64
Add: Addition 207 .87
Less: Daletion
Closing Balance 40.58 38.51
Qtheritems of 0G|
Opening Balance -173.09 2762
Remeasurentent Gainf{Loss) of defined Beneflt Plan{net of rax) 35.72 ~145.47
Less: Deletion
Clesing Balance -133.38 -173.09
Tatal 60,752.09 74,080.91
Nature af Reserve & Surplus
General Aesarve
The Company had transfemed a portlon of the net proflt of the y before declaring dividend Yo general reserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of Comp Act, 1956, Mandatory

transfer [0 general reserve 15 not required under the G Act, 2013,

Aetained Earnings

Retained sarnings are the prolits that company has earned till date, less any transter ta general regerve, div
reserve available to the company

or other di

pad to f

is 3 free

Other items of OCI
Ouher [tems of gther comprehensive incore (OC1} includas OC) arising from actuarial gain of loss on re-measurament of defined benefit Liability and rerurn on plan assats assets &
exchange diff on gthe daione financial of a toreign op
21 Borrowings - nom curcant i liahilities Rs. In Lakhs
As at As at
Particulars 31 March }J25 31 March 2024
Sacured Term toans from Bank
For Caphtal Expenditure 14,737.27 15,759.87
Yehicle Loan 12.34 24.57
Tatal 14,250.61 15.784.44
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LUMITED

Notes forming par of the 5t F

Tarms of Rapayment
Sanctionad
5r Mo Name of Lender Amoum Details Security
1|HDFC Bank 2,500.00 Term Loan First pari passu ¢charge over Land & building. 1t is furiter secured by flrst
Interest Rate: Linked to Treasury Bill parl passu charge over movable fixed assets jexcept vehlcle loans) of
[LastInterest Charged —8,10% p.a} the company. Second parl passu charge over current assats of the
[3ue Date for Repayment: Due for company.
regayment till September 2710 10
quarterly installments (from the date of
balance sheat) of IMR 124,93 takhs
2[HDFC Bank 2,500.00 {Term Loan First pari passu charge over land & building, Itis further secured by lirst
Interest Rate: Linked to Treasury B pan passu charge over mavable fixed assels {(except vehicle loans) of
[Last Interest Charged - 8.56% p.a) the company, Second pari passu charge over curment assets ol the
Due Date lor Repayment: Due lor company.
rapayment (il September 31in 24
quarterly installments {from the date of
balance sheet) of INR 104,17 lakhs
3|HDFC Bank 5,000.00 [Term Loan First pari passu charge aver tand & buitding, Jt|s further sacured by [frst
Interest Rate: Linked to Treasury Bl pari passu charge over mavable fixed assats (sxcept vehicle loans) of
[Last Inkerest Charged - 8.04% poa) the company. Second pari passu charge over current assets of the
Due Date for Repayment: Due for camp
(repayment ollJuly 28 In 14 quarterly
installments {from the datg of balance
sheet] of INR 243,58 lakhs
4{tndian Bank 1,200.00 |Term Loan First pari pagsu charge over Land & ballaing. 1t 15 furiher secured by first
Interest Rate:Lastintarest Charged- pari passu charge over movahle fixgd assets (excapt vehicle lpans) of
9.15%p.a. the company, Second pali passu charge over current assets of the
Due Dare for Repayment: Due for COMpETY.
[repayment till Sepr 29in 53 monthly
installments of INR 16,67 lakhs and
Balarce of 13,54 Llakhs tao be paid as last
instaliment
5|Indian Bank 4,000,00 |Term Loan First pari passu charge over land & building. It is further secured by first
Interest Rate:Last interest Charged pari passu charge over movable fixed assets (except vehicle loans) of
S.00%pa the company. Second pari passu charge over current assets of the
Due Date for Repayment: Due for company.
repayment Lill August 22 n 17 quarterly
Instaiments of INA 200 Llakhs and
Balance of 138 77 lakhs to be paid as
lastinstallment
5| Indian Bank 2,500.00 |Term Loan First pari passu charge over land & building, Itis lurther secured by first
Interest Rare: Interest Last charged pari passu charga over movable flxed assets (excepl vehicle loans) of
8. 70% p.a, the company. Second pari passu charge over curent assers of the
Due Date lor Repayment: Dua for company.
repayment il June 30 in 20 quarerly
installments of INR 71.75 lakhs each.
7|kotak Mahindra Bank 5,000.00 |Term Loan First pari passu charge gver land & building. It is further securad by first
Rate of Interest:Linked to Treasury Bill  |pari passu charge over movable fined assers (except vehicle loans) of
(Last Interest Charged - 8.45% p.a) the company. Second pari passu charge over cutreni assets of the
Due Date for Aepayment:Ous far company.
rapayment {ill Jan 27 in 8 quarterly
installments af INR 222,62 lakhs
B|Kotak Mahindra Bank 2,500,00 (Term Loan First par passu charge over lanu & building, Itis lurther sacured by first
Rate of InterestLinked to Treasury BUL  |parl passu charge over movable flxed assets {except vehicle loans] of
[Last Interast Charged - 8.55% p.a) tha company, Second pari passu charge over cufrent assets of the
Due Dote far Nepoyment;Duc (o CUlpany,
repayment till May 30 in 20 quarterly
instaliments of IR 49,63 lakhs each
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Hotes torming part of the Standal Fi
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ial Stat

SICICI Bank

0| Indusind Bank

-

1|HDFC Bank

2,500.00

2,500.00

2972

Term Loan
Interast Rate: Last Interest Charged -
8.85%p.4

Due Date for Rep Due for

First pani passu charge over Land & building. Itis further secured by first
parl passu charge over movable fixed assels (excepl vehicle loans) of
the company. Second pan passu charge over current assets of the

repayment till June 29 in 17 quarery
ingtaliments of INR 81 98 lakhs each,

Term Loan

Rate of Interest-Linked to Treasury Bill
{Last Interast Charged - 7.95% p.a)

Due Darte tor Repayment:Due hor
repayment fill Sepi 26 in 14 inslallments
INR 124.93 Lakhs and last 4 installments
of INR 123.93 lakhs.

Vehiclz Loan

Rate of Interest:d 40% p.a

Duga Date tor Repayment: Due for
repayment from ull March 28 in 356 equal
EMI of IMR 0.61 lakhs

First parl passu charge over land & building. It is further secured by flrst
pari pazsu charge ovar movable fixed assels (axcept vehicle loans) of
the company. Second pari passu charge over current assets of the
company,

ehicle Financed

1. Term Loans from consorlium lead by Canara Bank is sacured by first pari passu chargs over Land & buitding. It is further secured by first pari passu charge over movable fixed asses

{except vehicle loans & one property loan} of the company, Consortium also holds second parl passu charge over the currant assets of the comp

. Term Loan C

Canara Bank a3 Lead Bank and Punjab National Bank, HOFC Bank Limited, Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, Indusind Bank, ICICI Bank and Indian Bank 8 member banks.

2, The leans from banks are alsp guaranteed by Mr Rahul Khanna and Mr Brl] Mohan Khanna

3. Amount disclosed 33 above is net of Current Matunties of Long Term Bomowings (f.e. Secured Term Loans from Banks and Secured Other Loans| of INR 4792,94 lakhs (Previcus Year

2224.37 Lakhs)

4. Number of instalimenrs are counted Irom tha current year's balance sheet date {2 31st March 2025

12 Lease ligbllities - non current financial liabilities Rs.in Lakhs
As at Az at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Lease Liabilies
Lease Llabiliy 1,387,57 1,745.14
Total 1,387.57 1.746.14
“Rafer Nole 83 for changas due to prior period ermars and Refar nota no. 51 for detalts of laase liability
23 Other fi il | non current fis. in Lakhs
As at As at
Pawticulars 31 March 2025 31 arch X024
Security deposits 209173 2,007.09
Total 109173 200709
Secunty Deposits include amount received from customers (dealers) 22 well a3 vendars under contractual terms a3 per normal course of business.
24 Provisions - nori currant Rs. inLakhs
As at As ar
[Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provision for employee benefis
Gratuity 985.71 B807.36
Leave Encashment 18511 147.66
Total 1,150.82 1,035.00
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KHANMA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

MNotes forming part of the Standal Fi ial Stat
25 Deforrod tax lighitities, net Rs. in Lakhs
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Defered Tax Asset -1,294.20 -1,061.40
Defemed Tax Liability 525714 4,602.26
Total 3,962.94 3,540.86

Significant Comporiants of Deferrad Tax Lisbility

Opening batance  Recoghised to PAL

Recognised to aCl

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 Asat31 March 2024
Deferred Tax Liabllities

Related (o Fixed Assets 4,646.76 4,200,934
| Reversal of Upfront Fees 11.00 10.62
| Fair value gainsLoss on Mutual Fund .40 1818
Right of Use Agsels 577.99 268,53
Total BTL 5,257.14 4,602 26
Deferred Tax Assats

Pravision for Gratuity 305,25 353.82
Pravision tor Defesred Revenue 117.00 155.01
Provision for leave h 61.82 §0.23
438 Disallowances [Bonus Payable) 46,23 4.50
Trade Raceivables 71.83 vave
MAT Credh - -
Dernerger expanses 175 5.49
[43B(h} Disallowances |Delayed Payment) 36.95
Lease Liabllity §10.17 ad1.62
Total DTA 1.294.21 1,861.40
Deetarrad Tan Lisbilities, net 3.862.94 3,540.88
Movernant in deferred tax assetsfliability

Current reporting period As. in Lakhs

Closing balance
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Particulars
Delerred Tax Liabitity
Relatad to Fined Assets 4,2023.94 44262 4,646,765
Reversal of Upiront Fees 10.62 037 11.00
Fant value gainfLoss on Mutual Fund 15.18 222 21,40
Rfght of Use Assats 360.53 209.45 577,489
Total DTL 4,602.26 654.88 - 5.257.14
Crelerred Tax Assats
Pravision for Gratuity 353.62 5276 -21.33 385.25
Provislon for Deferred Revenue 155.01 -38.01 117.00
Pravision for leave h 60,23 1.58 61.82
438 Dizallowances {Bonus Payable) 34.50 1173 46.23
Trade Recervables 7376 -1.78 71.99
MAT Cradit - - -
Demerger expenses 548 -3.74 175
428(h) Qi IDelayed Fay I 35.98 -36.94 -
Lease Liability 34162 268.55 610.17
Totad DTA 1,081.40 254.13 -21.33 1,.294.21

2,540.88 400.75 21.33 396284
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

WNotes forming part of the Standal Fi ial §

Previous reéporting ouriod

Rs. in Lakhs

TN,
gt

.-:TjIIL-;":'J

Opening balance Recognised 1o Recognised to QCl closing balance
Statement of PAL
Particulars
Drelerred Tax Liability
Related to Fixed Assets 4,202.64 1.a0 4,203.94
Reversal of Upfront Fees a.es 1.72 1082
Faif value gam/Loss on Mutual Fund 11.68 7.50 12,18
Right of Use Assels 364.53 368,52
Total DTL 4,223.20 379.86 - 4,602.26
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for Gratuity 242,87 33.03 ¥a.12 353,82
Provision for Deferred Al 193.02 -38.01 155.01
Provision for leave h 36.45 24,79 60.23
438 Disallowances |Bonus Payable) 41.70 121 34.50
Trade Receivaties 34.76 ag.on e
MAT Credit 2,680.64 2,888.84 -
Demerger expenses 5.4% 5.49
43B{h]) Dizall |Delayed P: ] 36.98 36.98
Lease Liability 341.62 .62
Total DTA 343623 245295 79.12 1,061.40
Net 708.97 283201 <7612 3,540,806
26 Other non current lizhilities Rs. in Lakhs
A at Az at
Particulars 31 March 2025 11 March 2024
Deferred Income 226,05 33482
Total 226.05 334.82
27 Borrowings - current fi ial liabilitlas Rs. in Lakhs
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current ities of Long term ing 4,736.80 2.224.37
Securad Loans repayable on demand from Banks
Cash credit/PCFC/PCLAworking caphial loans 25,788.18 13,344.57
i Loans repayable on d. i from Eanks
Buyer's Credit 8,957 .62 -
Credit Cards 0.12 -
Purchase Bill discounting 444,10 6,382,365
Unsecured Loans from relaved partias - 100.00
Total 38,903.32 2,051.30
(e |\
e o
= TAN |a}.<)
\ :/,

Page 27 of 49




KHAMMA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Notes lorming part of the St

Particulars of Barrowings

HName of Lender/Type af Loan

Rate of Interast

Hature of Securlty

Canara Bank/Cash Credit

PHB{Cash Credit

UBIKCash Cradit

Indian Bank/Cash Credit

HOFC Bank/Cazh Credit

Canara Bank/WCOL

PHBAYCOL

UBI/vYCoL

Indian BankAWCDL

HOFC Bank/MCOL

ICIC) Bank/WCDL

Indusing BankMWCDL

85875

9.35-9.50

A.30-9.00

12.20

1120

9.30

.30

932

a.35

.4

=3

430

13.00

First pari passu charge over land and building, It is further secured by flrsL pan passu charge
aver cuirent assets of the company. Second pari passu chargs over movable fixed assers
lexceapt vehicle oan|] of the company,

Flrst pari passu charge over land and building, It is further secured by {lrst pari passu charge
fwrer current assers of the company, Second parl passu charge over movahle fixed assets
{except vehicle lpan| of the company.

First parl passu charge over land and building. It is furthar secured by first pari passu charge
over current assets of the company. Second parni passu charge aver movable fixed assets
{except vehicle loan) of the company.

First pari passu charge over land and bullding, It |5 further secured by flrst pari passu change
aver culrent assels of the company. Second pari passu charge over movable lixed assers
|except vehicle loan) of the company.

First pari passu charge over land and buitding. Itis further securad by first pari passu charge
over cument assets of the company. Second pani passu charge over movable fixed assets
[excepl vehicle loan] of the company,

FirstL pari passu charge over land and bullding, I¢is further secured by firsr pari passu charge
over current assets of the company. Second pari passu charge over movable fixed assets
[except vehicle loan) of the company.

First pari passu charga over land and building. Itis lurther secured by first pari passu charge
aver current assets of the company. Second pari passu charge over movable tined assers
{except vehicle loan| of the company.

First pari passu charge over land and building. Itis lurther secured by first pan passu charge
over curlent assers of the company, Second pari passu charge over movable fixed assets
{except yehicle loan| of the company.

First pari passu charge over land and building, Itis further secured by first pan passu charge
aver current aszets of the company. Second pan passu charge over movahble fixed assets
[except vehicle loan) of the companty.

First pati passu charge over land and building, Jtis turther secured by first pan passu charge
aver culrent assels of the company. Second pan passu charge over movable fixed agsets
{except vehicle loan) of the campany,

First pari passu charge over land and building. Itis further secured by tHrst part passu charge
over current assets of the company. Second pari passu charge over movable fixed asseats
(except vehicle toan) of the company.

First pari passu charge over land and building. Ivis further secured by first pari passu charge
gver curfent assets of the company. Second pari passu charge over movable fixed assats
[except vehicle loan) of the company.

1. The borrowings have been guaranteed by Mr Ranul Khanna {Directer) and Mr Beij Mohan Khanna |Director).
2, The total charge on all Lhe assats of the Company on account of fund based & non-fund based facilities is INA 75,000,00 L akhs {Previous Year INR 75,000,00 Lakhs)

3. Unsecured lpans from related parties are Repayable on demand and interest is charged at 8 % per annurm.

FZSOUNTANTS 122
 FRN: 073104
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KHANMNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Motes forming part of the Standal Fil jal 5t
28 Leasd liabilitias - current finzncial liabilitias Rs. in Lakhs
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 21 March 2024
Laaza Liablitles
Lease Liabllity 35457 136,34
Total 358.57 13638
*Refar Note 83 for changes due to prior perlad arrors and Refer note no. 51 for details of leasa liability
29 Trade Payables - current Rs. in Lakhs
Asat As ot
Particulars 21 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total nutstanding dues of Micro and small i 1,729.14 365,13
Total outstanding dues of Cradilor of ather than Micro Enterprize and small enterprise 15,381,854 9,223.36
Total 1711148 9,588.49
Rs. In Lakhs

Trade Payablss ageing scheduls [Currant Yaar)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

Trade Payabins ageing schedule [Previous Year)

Outstanding for following periods from dile date of payment

Particulars Unbilled Undue
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

[i} MSME = 172214

fiij Others 34,89 15,377.75

(i} Disputed dugs- MSME - -

i) Di d dues- Others 420 4.20

Total 17,111.08
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Unhilled Undue :

. Less than Tyear 1-Zyears 2-3years Mors than 3 yaars
MSHME - 365,13
Others + 9.219.16
Disputed dues- MSME : a
Disputgd duss- Others 420 A20
Tertal 9,588.45

The information as required to be disclosed pursuant under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED Act, 2006| has been determined fo the extent such
parties have been identifizd on the basis of i i

ilable with the Company. Di:

5 as MSMED Act, 2008 has been given in note 50.

30 Other financial liabilities - currem Ra.in Lakhs
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest accrued 167.06 101.05
Secunity deposits 459.29 161.40
Audit Fee Payable 19.34 19.50
Employee Redaied Payable 61027 48042
Expenzes Payable 1,707.35 1,320,596
NP5 Contribution Payable 240 -
Payables on Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 301.50 1.738.71
Totat 3,268.13 3,822.04
1. Payablas on Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments and Intangible Assats includes MSME duas of INA 95.43 lakhs (Previous Year INR 203,77 lakhs)
31 Other gurrent liabil Rs.in Lakhs
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Advance recelved from customers 328.53 1,320.62
Deferred revenue 108.77 108.77
Statutory duas payabla
ESVBEPF 56.96 58.51
L3 10.20 2040
Income Tax (TDSTCS) 14196 25170
Labour Welfare Fund Payable 184 183
Preiessianal Tax Payable 2,80 243
Total £50.26 1,838.72

Page 25 of 49

TANTS S

04N/
.




KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Hates forming part of the Standal Fi ial Stat ts
32 Provisions - current Rs. in Lakhs
Asat As at |
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Prawision for amployes beneftt
Gratuity 108.77 125.13
Leave Encashmant 21.79 2471
Total 128.56 149.90
33 Current Tax Liabilities, net Rz, in Lakhs
As at As at
| Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 202a
Currant Tax Liabilities, nat - 92625
Total - 926.25
34 Revenue From Operstians Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Far Year ended Far Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Satu of products
Manutactured Goods 1,84,452.13 2,11,7686.71
Traded Goods 228.99 -
Sale of services 4,508.03 4,758.51
Other operating revenues
Export Incentives 39.96 81.20
Scrap Sale Bao1.08 72151
Towal 1,90,030.19 217,326,133
Aevenus from contracts with cus disaggregated basad on naturs of products As. in Lakhs
For Year endad For Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
|Finished Goods
= Paper 84,497.88 1,04,859.55
- MewsprinL 43,144.00 50,812.06
- Board 6i5,668.49 6B6,162.30
Traded Goods 228.99 -
Supply of Services 4A87.14 4,756.51
Total 1.99,026.49 2.28.590.41
Reconciling the smount of revenue recop in the af profit and logs with the contracted grice Rs. In Lakhs
Far Year ended For Year anded
Particulars 21 March 2025 31 March 2024
Tatal Revenue from Contract with Customers. 1,95,025.49 2,28,590.4]
Lezs: Rebates and Discounts -9,837.34 -12,047.20
Add: Serap Sale 801.07 72191
Add: Income from Export Incentives 39.96 51.20
Takal 1.90.030.19 21732633
Reconclling the smount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and lass disaggregated basad on Geography Rs. ln Lakhs
For Year ended For Year endad
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
In India 1,85,397.2% 2,11,255.90
Cutsida India 4,632.90 6,070.38
Total 1.90.030.19 2,17,32633
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Motes forming part of the Standal Fi ial Sl it

Reconciling the amount of revenue racognised an Timing

Particulars

At a pointin Time

Far Year ended
31 March 20715

Over a Period of
tirng

Rs. in Lakhs

For Year ended
31 March 2024

At 3 pointin Time

Over a Pariod af time

Total Revanue from Contract with Customers 1,99,076.49 2,28,530.41 -
Less: Rebates and Discounts -9,637.34 -12,047.20 -
Add: Scrap Sale 801.07 72191 -
Add: Income from Export Incenlives 39.96 6120 -
Total 1,90,030.19 E?,m -
Significant chapges in the unhilled revenue and deferred revenus balancas during the year are as follows: As. In Lakhs
|Particulars 0 2 024
Unbilled Revenue Detered Rzvenue
gnised that was included In defemed atthe

beginning ol the year

Increazes due to cash recewed, excluding amounts recognised as

revenue during the year

from unbilled ised at the of the year

o recehvables

Total = - .
Contract balances As. in Lakhs

For Year ended For Year ended

| Particulars 31 iMarch 2025 31 March 2024
Trade Receivables 21,570.04 13,426.42
Contract Assets- Unbilled Revenue - -
Contract Liabllities - -
Advances from custaners -328.53 -1,328.63
Tatal 21,641.51 12,086.79
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Motes forming part of the 5t. [; 5

Other Incorna

|Particutars

Interestincome

For Year ended
31 March 2025

Rs. in Lakhs
For Year anded
31 March 2024

On Bark Deposits 243.48 22428

On other Financial Assets 44.64 29.83
Allowance for Bad Debts 5.57 2218
Commission Received §1469 95,00
Fair value gain on financial classified at fair value thiough PAL 6,35 2148
GainfLoss On Cancellatlon Of Hedging Contracts 286 108.70
Insuranee Clalms 2,385.92 206.77
Miscellaneous Income 108.78 243.08
Rental Income 5.40 1134
Total 2,965.69 105765
Cost of materials consumad fs. in Lakhs
Particulars . ded or Yea ded
Raw Material consumed

Opening stock 17,242.62 6,452,39

Purchasas 1,38,014.82 1,97,775.74

Adjustrment 1,783.40 .

Lass: Chosing stock 18,781.34 t7,242.62
Total 1,38,259.50 1,26,985.51
Total 1,38.259.50 1,26,988.51

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars For Year ended For Year ended
31 March 2035 31 March 2024

Stack in trade 21237 -

Total 1277 -

Changes in inventorias of finishad zoods, Stack in Trads and work In progress As. In Lakhs
Particulars For Year ended For Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opaniing stock
Finished Goads 1,324.28 5,936.18
wip 363.74 $7.04
Process Waste 051 -
Less: Clasing Stock
Finishad Goods 5,744.01 1324.28
wip 183111 36374
Process Wasta - 0.51
Total -5.986.59 5,004.69
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KHANMA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Naotes torming part of tha Standalone Fi ial Stat

39 Employes banefits expensa Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars For Year ended For Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries and wages 709347 7.797.85
Contributlon to provident and other fund 394.63 353,60
ity and Leave Enc |Refer Mate 46) 243,86 279.70
Stalfwelfare expenses 157.18 180.57
Tatal 7.920.14 8,621.62
40 Finance costs Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Far Year ended For Year ended
31 March 2025 21 March 2024
Interest espenses
On Borrowings from Felated Parties. 3.46 g.00
On Security Deposits 157.56 138.84
On term loan - Capex 1,115.68 5ag.62
On term loan - Property Loan 2 57.44
On term loan - Vehlele Loan 176 3.10
Dn'Working Capiral Barrowing 2032.09 1,893.75
Others 94.61 32,15
Unwinding of Discount on Lease 183.62 153.83
Other barrowing costs 267.65 24341
Tatal 3,841.62 2,917.14
The weigl g rate for capitali of interast relating to general borrowings was approximately 8.60% and 8.58% (or the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,
respechively,

41

42

The borfowing costs capitalized during the period on qualifying assers |prop

March 31, 2024, respactively.

¥ plant and

}is [MA 502,69 Lakhs and INR 572,83 Lakhs for the years ended March 31, 2025 and

Bepreciation and amortisation As. in Lakhs
Particulars For Year ended For Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation on Property, Piant and Equipments 6.475.08 5,749.94
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 893 12,19
Amortisation of Right of Uze Azsers 356.10 305.59
Total 65.840.17 6,067.72
Other expenses Rs. In Lakns

|Particulars

For Year anded

For Year ended

31 March X315 31 March 2024

Audivors' Remuneration (Refer Note 47)

Statutory Audit 17.00 17.00

Tax dudiv 4.50 .50
Commission 1,B60.67 1,467.63
Fraight outward 6,069.61 6,262.60
Insurance 480.91 520,68
Loss an sale of property, plant and equipment - [Net) 14534 157
Mer loss on fare gn cuirency tranalation 3.54 21.69
Professional fees 1,235.97 91092
Rent 0.4 250.18
Repairs to buitdings 537.52 324.11
Repairs to machinery 574.92 818.67
Repalrs others 915.21 882,53
Rates and tasas Zn 25.05
Travelling Expenses 97.02 41753
Cther Expenses 520.70 416.40
All made[r sed) for Trade Receivables{net| -5.05 111.80
Consumptton of Stores & Spares 5,194.91 6,460.54
Impai loss of other Financial Asset - 114.27
Orher Bank Charges 52.60 78.87
Packing Charges 373772 3,822.73
Power, Coal & Water 25,073.88 r sy
Total 46,861.69 5077178
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Notes farming part of the Standal Fi ial St

S ton of stores and spara parts

Particulars For Year endad For Year ended
21 March 2025 31 March 2024
Consumption of Stores & Sparas consurred
Opening stock 7.741.15 5,979.47
Purchases 27,968.35 42,037.32
Adjustment = -
Less: Closing stock 849176 74118
Toul 27,1014 48,275.65
Packing Material consumed
Opening stack 29141 533.26
Purchases 3,730.42 358197
Adjustment - -
Less: Closing stock 235.11 29241
Total 3,721.72 3,822.73
Tatal 79,464.65 1,20,263.85
Tan axpensas Fs. in Lakhs
Particulars. For ¥ear ended For Year ended
A1 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cumentiax
Current year tax expense 6,478.0B
Rectification of excess provision of tax relating to prior years -324.46 -
Deisrred tax 400.75 -56.63
Total 76.29 6,421.95 |
Reconciliatan of taw enp b g arafit at applicabla tax rate and effactive tax raee
As. in Lakhs
Particulars For Year ended Far Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit before tax -7,060.30 17,810.32
| Statutery income-tax(Mormal Tax) 34,94% 34.04%
Tan expense at statutory income tax rate - 822371
Tax affect of
Pravious year taxes -324.46 -
Met Tax Impact of expenses which are not allowed under Income tax act - 27184
Effect of deduction under section 80 G - -17.47
Others 400.75 -56.63
Ean eNp recogniged in the of profit and loss 76.29 5.421.45
00 that will not be reclassified to P&L fs. in Lakhs
Particulars For Vear ended For Year anded
11 March 2025 31 March 2024
R of the defined banefit plans
Re-measurement {gain)floss on defined hensfit plans 61.06 -223.59
Exchange differances on lating the In Foreipn diary 2.07 0.86
QClincoma tax of items that wil not be reclassified to P&L
P {gain)floss on defined benelit plans -21.33 7812
Total 4180 -144.61
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KHANNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Changes in tha prasznt value of the dafined benafit obiigation in respect of Gratuity (unfunded)

As at 31 March 2025

Hotes forming part of the Standal Fi ial Stat
garning per share

For Year ended For ¥zar ended
| Particulars 21 March 2025 31 March 2014
Profit ibutable 1o equity sharehokd A As. inLakhs -5,288.92 11,388.87
Weighted averaga numbsr of Equity Shares for Basic EPS a Mo 2,6537,945 2,65,37,945.00
Face value per equity share (R3] Rs 10.00 10,00
Earnings per share basic (Rs] C (AfB) As -1993 4292
Weighted average numbar of Equity Shares for Basic EP5 Mo 2,6537,945 2,65,37,945,00
Add/f|less): Adjustment for Dilution . .
‘Weighted average number of Equity Shares for Diluted EFS D 2,65,37,945 2,65,37,945,00
Face value par equity share (Rs) Rs 10.00 10.00
Earnings par share diluted {Rs) E a0y Rs -15.93 4292
Dafinad Benefit Plans
Gratuiby

Rs. in Lakhs

A5 3031 March 2024

Dehnad Benslit Obligation at beginning of the year 1,012.54 694,45
Current Service Cost 121.65 115.13
Interest Cast 7280 5112
Actuarial {Gain) f Losa 6106 223.59
Beneflts Pakd -43.47 174
Detined Banetit Chltigation at year and 1,102.46 1012.34
R llation of prasant value of defined benetit abligation and fair vatua of assets As. in Lakis
Paicr

Present value obligation a3 ar the end of the year 1,102.47 L0125
Shoft temn provision 10676 12518
LOra b arovsion 99571 B8#7.36
E In Profit and Lass A Rs. In Lakhs
Far Year ended For Year snded
ot 31 March 2005 31 March 2024
Current service cost
| cosl 728 5L.11
19445 166.24

Tatat expense recognised in Profil and Loss

Amount recop In Othes Camy Income
For Year ended For Year ended

! 31 March 2025 21 Mareh 2024
Metaciuarial losseam recognized during the wear 8106 22359
Toral amourt d i Other Compr mcom (H1L06) 22359
Particilars As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024
Discourn Rale 6.93% 7.19%
Exp Ratg of | I Comp ion Leval 10.00% 10.00%
Mortaliry Rate 100% of IALM (2012 - 14]  [100% of IALM (2012 - 14)
Retirernent Age 60 58
Atrilion 21 Ages-Withdrawal Rate 12 50% pa. 13% p.a

Analysl Rs.in Lakhs

Particulars

A Dlscount Rate

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

0.50% Increase 3257 279

0 50% decrease 483 2930

B. Fulure salary Increasss

0.50% Incraase 2256 2744

0.50% decrease <129 -26.44
RAs. inLakhs
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Expected Cash Flaws at 31 March 2025 Az at 31 March 2024

ko 1yaar 10676 125.18
1102 year 134.81 1X%.32
2o Iyear 12152 119.86
3o 4 year 11776 104 40
416 5 year $9.28 90,71
5to Gyear 84 B4 69,15
B year onwards 437 42 ar8.42
Total Expacted beneflt payments 1,102.96 101254
General DeseHption of the Plan

The Company has a dafined banelit gratulty plan. Evary amployes who has complated at least M years of service gets a grallity on departura at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each

completed years ol service. The schemeisunfunded.

{ii} Leawe Encashment

Changaes in tha present value of the defined benafit obligation in respect of Comp Absences Rs, in Lakhs
P: L As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024
Diefined Benelil Qbligation ai beginning of the year 17237 101.44
Current Service Cost 44.32 4718
Interes) Cost 1239 747
Actuarisl {Gain) f Loss -1.31 58.81
Benefits Paid -44.87 -42.53
| Defined Benelit Obligation at year end 176.90 17237
R liation of prasent value of defined benefit oblig and fair value of assets Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As 3t 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024
Frasant value obligalion as at the and af the year 176.50 17237
{Amaunt classified as:
Short tarm proy|sion 179 2471
Long term provision 155.11 147.66
Exp recognized in Profit and Loss Account Rs. in Lakhs
Porticulars For Year ended For Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Curram sarvlce cast 4432 47.18
Interest cost 1239 A7
Met lal losssgaln) ized during ihe year 731 58,51
Total expense ized in Profit and Loxs 49.41 11346

Actuarial assumptions

Parictars

Discount Rate 6.93% 7.19%

Increase in Compansation Cost 10.00% 10.00%

Mortality Riate 100°% of IALM {2012 - 14) [100 % of IALM {2012 - 14)

Ratirement Ags B 58

Anirition Ar Ages-Withdrewal Rate 12 50% p.a. 13.00% p.a.

Leave Availment Rate 5.00% 5.00%

Leave lapse rate while in serace il il

Leave lapse rate on exit il il

Leave Encachment rale while in service 5.00% 5.00%
Az, in Lakhs

Particuiars

As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 Marchi2024

A, Discouni Rate

0.50% Increass

0.50% decrease

B Futura salary incraasas
0.50% Increase

0.50% decrease

£33 -5.64
.74 6.0
G.51 5.83

-6.19 -5.55

Poge 36 of 49




Expected Cash Flows

As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2029

Partigutars
Oto 1year 2179 24.71
1o 2year 2L.29 .87
2o Iyear 1517 1247
o d year i7.18 1623
4o Syear 14.40 13.95
5 106 ymar 12.03 1119
B year pmwards 7104 .93
Total Exp d benefit 175.90 172.36
Auditars' Remuneration As_in Lakhs
P Far Year ended For Year ended
artiewnars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Payments to awdhor as
= Statubory Audit 17.00 17.00
- bor Tax Audit-F ¥, 24-25 a50 =
- lor Tax Audit-F ¥, 23-24 Loo 2,50
- For Tax Audit-F ¥, 22-23 o 250
- for Tax Audit- F Y. 21-22 = 2.50
- tor Certifications 0,25 0.95
Tatal .85 25.46
Conti Liabilities Rz, InLakhs
5 ! : ; 0
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
~In respect of custommatiars 20911 23459
- In respect of excise matters 32254 22253
Ir rezpect of sandcs tax matiars 115.80 115.88
In respect of Legal matiers = 752
In razpact of Incoma Taz manes 580 5.80
Inregpecr of GSTmarters 18164 *
Total 834.98 #a8.43
C s Rs. in Lakhs
F ] at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024
Capitat Commitments® 3,734,685 284133
Dutstand ing Bank Guarantzas 1,085.25 1,887.97
| Unexpived lerter of credits 1,453.50 611.44
Total 827340 $.540.80
= Capital I ars wilthout ad) ihe advance pay made
Micra and Small Enterprise As. in Lakhs
t31 March 2025 Asat 31 March2024
Particulars Interest Principal Interest
Amount Due to Supplier 1,824.57 588,50
Principal amount pald beyond appoimed dare = - - -
Interest due and payable for the yaar - - - -
Intarast accrued and remalring unpakd - - - -
Interest paid other than under Saction 15 of MSMED Act o suppliers registared
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Imgrest paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act ro suppliers registersd under the
MSMEL: Act beyond the appointad day dunng the yaar,
Further imerest remaining due and paysble for eadier years, - . - -
Dues to micro end small enterprises have been detemmined to the extent such parties have been identilied on 1he basls of Intimath d from Ihe = digrs” ding their sFatus under

the Micra, Small and Meadium Enterprlses Development Acr, 2006,
1, Ao due to suppliers includes Trade Payables amounting ta INR 1729 14 1akhs [Previous Year (NR 36513 Lakhs lakhs) and Payable on Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments and
Intangible Asaets amounting to IR 95 43 lakhs (Previous Yaar 200 77 lakhe)
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51 Disclosure regarding Leases as per Ind A5 115- 'Leages'
A Agsets taken on Lease
The Company has leazes for building. plant & equi and land. With the plion of short-tenm leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, @ach lease is retlected on the balance
shest a5 a night-of-uss assetand a lsasa labilky Vaniable lease payments which da nol depend on an index or 8 rate are excluded from the initial measurement of the Leaze Llability and right of
Lge as5ets

if owmership of 1he leased asset transfers hg the Company at the and of the lease term or the cost reflects the sxercise ol a purchase option, depreciation is calculared using Ihe ¢stimatad
usaful life of the assat

Areabup of Lease Liability As_in Lakhs
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 Az at31 March 2024
Current laase Yabjities 358.57 136,38
Hon cument lease liabilities 1,387.57 1,746,14
Total 1,746.14 1,8582.52
The movement in Laase Liability is a3 follows: As. i Lalkhs
Particu As at 31 March 2025 Asat31 March 2024
Balance al the heginning 188252 -
Radition during the year 189.45 2,021,599
Flnance cost accrued 168,81 153483
Payment of lease liabilities -494,65 29270
Tatal 1,746.14 128252
Corroctual Lease Liabilites on undiscountad basfs as follows. Rs. in Lakhs
F As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Future mimi rental payables under 1Lk,
- Mat Latar than one year 488.56 494.85
- Later than one year and not later than five pears. 1,389.23 1,716.14
- Later than fhve ywars 270.00 441.65
The Company doss not lace a signiflcam hauldity nsk wilh regard 1o [t3 12ase Labilinies a3 1he current assets ars suthcient to mest the obligations related 10 lease liabllities as and when thay
fall due
Rantal axpenzes recorded lar short-term leases and low value leases |s Fg. 375,67 Lakhs during year endad March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 Rs. 388,12 Lakhs)
52 Segment Reparting
Rusiness Segment
The Compary is primari Eagad In the d of I of Papes, Mews Print and Papar Board, along with busi of ity trading and hospltatity, A dingty, tha Company
has broadly ified Its busl irles into the ing divisions, each of which rep an d i activity
Th is engaged in the i of

aj Manulacturing of Papar, Maws Pring and Paper Board
by Commodity Trading
£} Hospitality Businass which locusas on ¢ lan and devel afh |tied lapd parcel lor the e a5 Hotal, Restaurant, Public Unility Area and ather commerclal dwelling units for

commarcial pLrposes including leasing

Ind AS 108 Operating Segments, statas that the rapartable item of a3ch sepment thould be measured at that price which is used by the chiel opersting declslon maker (CODM) ior the

of making abioue all '} o the seg and gits p e H. if COOM uses mare than one measure than management may yse the most

[: i Alsa, do not provide any speciilc measure for calculstion, nor it require thar the same accounling policy should be for p ion of fi i
Sa, the intiples are not required to De in accordance o conslstent lnd AS.
Further, as per para 27{b} of Ind AS 108, If thare are any dil: the bl * proflts or losses and the antity's prodit or loss before considening tha affact ol Income tax
eApEnsE ar fneome, ther the nature of this difference should be disclosed, This shows that the slandard does not mandale the entity to follow any spacific policy or measure but it there is amy
difference b thé reportabl * proflts of lossas and the sntity's profit o loss belore income tax, then 2 clear and detailed reconciliation should be disclosed for differance
amount,
Identification of Segments.
The chief op | decision maker monitors the operating results of its busi " p for the p of making decisions about llocation and perf e
5 p Is based on prolit and loss of segr the and 1% d i with profil or 1055 in the Anancial statemants. Oparating.

segments have been [dentified on the basia of nature of business.

Sepmani Aeveriue and Results
The expenses and income which ara net directly

hulabile 1 any are shown as unallocabl diture [net ot unallocable Incame).
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Rs.in Lakhs

Segment Assuts & Liabilities

Particutars

As at
21 March 2025

Sepment Aszets

Az at
31 March 2024

As at
31 Marzh 2025

Segment Liahililes

Pariiculars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
External Intersegment Interss it

Revenua
HManutaciuring Businass 1,92,866.08 1,92,666.95 2,18,379.04 2,18,378.04
Commadity Trading 278.99 22095 - -
I and Asal Estats 594 594
Tatal 1,92,895 .38 - 1,82,895.88 2,18,383.98 - 218.383.90
Rasult
Manufactuning Business =5,202.50 -5,202 60 18,275.19 18,275,19
Commaodity Trading 15.22 15,22 -198.57 -398.57
Haspitality and Real Estate =28.15 -26.15 -56.31 -66.31
Total § Rasuit -5,212.53 - -5,212.53 17 b 32 - 171022
Operating Profi -5212.53 17.610.32
Proftt befora tax 5,212 17.810.52
Provislon for crrent tax -324.46 6,476.08
Provision lor deferred tax 400.75 -56.63
Prolit for the pariod -5,2688.82 11,368.87
* Toral Revenue includes other income

Rz. in Lakhs

As at
31 March 2024

Qther Infarmatian

Manulacturing Business 1,53,180.01 1,37,288 .59 2407573 B2981.45
Commodity Trading - -
Hospitality and Real Estate 2,303 .41 2,323.56 .
Tutal 1,65, 443.42 1,38,615.1% B4,075.73 A2,561.45
Total assets/liahilities 1,55,443.42 1,39,616.15 #4,075.73 62,961.45
Rs_in Lakhs

Han-cash expenses other than depraciation

Additional information by Geographies

Revanue by Geograpnical Marker

As at 31 March 20,

{Particulars Capital Expenditure Dapreciation
As at As at A at As at As at
A3 at 31 March 2025
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 . 31 March 2024
Manufachuring Business 5,935.22 18,366.91 &,514.02 5,038.87 -5.05 587
Commodity Trading =3 -
Hospitallty and Real Estate - 26.15 26.84
Toral 6,935.22 18,385.91 5,840.17 9,087.72 -5.06 225.87
As. in Lakhs

As-at 31 March 2024

Inindla 1,85,367.29 2,11.255.00

Outside India 4,632.50 6,070.35
Total 1,90,430.19 24730632
Carnang Amount of Seament Assets

Inndla 1,55,397 94 1,39,228.04

Outside India 85.48 2341
Total 155.482.42 1.20. 31144
Addilion to Praperty, Plant and Equipment

I India 12,579.54 12.186.08
Tatal 12,529.54 12.196.08

aheut magor

Mo single ¢
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53 Redated Farty Disclosure
{i} List of Ralated Parties

Mr. Rahut Khanna

i, Brij Mohan Khanne

Mrz. Shivani Khanna

Mrs, Renu Khanna

Mr, Manprest Singh

Mr. Dhirmant Singh

Mr. ¥R Krishnan

M. Sunil Kumar Shah

Mrs. Privanka

Mr. Kamal Garg

Mr Rakash Sathi

Mr. Guxjot Singh Warang

Mr, Marander Sharma

Mr. Anurag Sanena

Mr. Saurabh Khanna

Mz, Siya Khanna

Khanna Fiber Private Limited
Khanna PaperInc,

Grownd Realty Private Limited
Grownd Crew Private Limited
Erlj Mohan Khanna HUF

SRM Recycling Privara Limited
Shore Te Shore Logistics India Limited
Samvira LLP

Dstressme Bravehears LLP
New Lane Trading LLP

Clena Beverages Private Limited
Tulika Exim And Tradecomm LLP
Blinkotanal Advisors LLP
Machino Polymers Limited
Machinge Polyrmers Indla Private Limited
Trucap Financa Limitad

1 K. Camani Limited

Heritage Finlease Limited
Khanna Paper DMCC

2=y ;“;\Co
¥
CHARTERED )2

PIRITAN
I TAN

"\ FRN: 023104 /.

T3

Relauonship

Managing Director

Whiole Time Director

Hon- Exgcutive Direcror
Whole Thne Dirsctor
Whaole Time Directar
Whole Time Director
Whale Time Directer
Ex-CFO

Company Secretary
Independant Diractar
Independent Directar
Ex-lndepsndent Director
Independent Directar
Exn-CFQ

Relativa of KMP

Aetative of KMP

Wholly onned Subsidiary
Wholly owned Subsidlary
Wholly awned Subsidiany
Wholly owned Subsidlany
Enrity under contral of KMP
Entity under comrol of KMP
Entity under contral ol KMP
Entity undar control of KMP
Enlity under contral of KMP
Entity under comrol of KMP
Emity under contral af KMP
Entity under control oF XMP
Entiry under contral of KMP
KMP-Influenced Entities
KMP-Inlly=ncad Enlitins
KMPnfluenced Entities
KiF-Inlluencad Enulies
KMPnlluenced Enlitles
KMP-influenced Entities.
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\ii} Related Farty Transactions

Particulars

Relatlonship

Ramuneration

- Mr. Rahul Khanna

= Mr. Brij Mohan Khanna

- Mr, Manpres: Singh

=M. Dhimant Singh

- Mr, SYR Krishnan

-Mrs. Renu Khanna

-Mr Saurabh Khanna

7. Sunil Kumar Shan

=Mrs. Priyanka
Rent Paid

= HMr_ Aahl Khanna

= Mr=. Shivani Khanna

-Brij Mohan Khanna HUF
Furchase of Land

= MIr, Rahul Khanna
Relmbursement of expensas

- Mr. Manpreet Singh

=Mr. Dhimant Singh

- Mr, VR Krishnan

=ir. Anurag Saxena

-Knanna Fiber Private Limited

- Shore 1o Shore Logistics India Lim|ted
Sitting Fees

= Mre. Shivam Khanna

-Mr. Kamal Gary

~Mr. Rakesh Seit

-Mr. Marender Sharma

=Mr. Gurijot Sngh Marang
Interest Paid

= Mrs, Shivani Khanna
Unsecured Loen repayment

- Mrs. Shivan| Khanna
Frofesshonal Marketing Services

=Ms. Siya Khanna
Profegsional charges

= Mr. Anurag Saxena
Purchass of Goods

- Khanna Paper Inc.

=Khanna Paper DMCC
Charges Aecovered

~Khanna PaperInc.
Invastment in Debenturas

- Grommd Realty Private Limited

-Khanna Fibar Private timited
Loan Glyen

= Grovwnd Realty Private Limited
Sale

-5AM Recycling Private Limited ™

Managing Director
Whole Time Director
Whola Time Director
Whole Time Director
‘Whola Time Director
Whele Time Director
Rslative of KMP
Ex-CFO

Company Secretary

Managing Director
Mon- Executive Director
Entity under control of KMP

Managing Direciar

Whole Time Directar
Whole Tirme Director
Whale Tlme Direcrar
Ex-CFD

Wholly owned Subsidlary
Entity under control of KMP

Hon- Executive Director
Independent Directar
Independant Director
Indepandent Directar

|Ex-Independ&nt Directer

Hon- Executive Director
Hon- Executive Director
Relative of KMP

Ex-CFQ

Wholly owned Subsidlary
KMP-Influenced Entities

Wholly owned Subsidlary

Whelly awned Subsidlary
Wholly cwned Subsidiany

Whally owned Subsidiary

Erttity under camral ¢f KMP

For Year ended
31 March 2025

36637
453.34
79.04
108.00
130.00
40.00

4587
1281

120,00

100
1.00
63

003
a.00
.50
1025
10.50
3

346

100.00

1.4

fs. in Lakhs
Far Year anded
31 March 2024

501,12
44.40
82,50
7511

120.00

398.57

1241

100.80

ar.20

L

031
132.48
8.26
3.00
1.00
4.00
4.00
3.50

.00

4.00

20.93

2,090.88
26.81

7.32

5,965.82
685.00

645

\ s
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{ili} Railated Party Balances As. i Lakhs

Fdvances for Progerty, Plant and Equip and dible Asgels
= Mrs. Renu Khanna Whole Time Director 3,797.83 3797.83
Unzecured Loan
~Mrs. Shivam Khanna Man- Execulive Director » 100.00
Trade Recevable
- SAM Recycling Privabe Limited | Eniry under conwrol of KMP 3296 22,42
- Shore to Shore Logistics India Limited Entity under coniral ol KMP 0.02 13.08
Ouner Raceivablas
- Khanna Fiber Private Limited Wholly owned Subsidiary 2385 23.85
= Mr. Rahul Khanna Managing Director = 0.95
-Mr. Saurath Khanna v of KMP 14.89 14.89
Advance to vendor
= Khanna Paper Inc Wholty owned Subs|diary 46.25 44.34
- Grownd Realty Private Limited Whelly owned Subsidiay 12,485.82 12 48882
- Grownd Crew Private Limited Wholly owned Subsidiary 1.00 1.00
- Khanna Fiber Private Limited Wholly ownad Subsidiary 1,488.00 1,485.00
- Khanna Paper Ine Whaolly owned Subs|diary a5.48 B4l
Loan Given
- Geawnd Realty Private Limited Whally owned Subsidiany 50.00 50.00
Salary Payable
- Mr. Sunil Kumar Shah Ex-CFQ 4.42 -
-Mrs. Privanka Company Sacretary 0.92 0,78
|ivk Employee Benefits for Kay © £ |
| Particulars For Year ended For Year anded
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Short Term Emplovee Benefits 1,290.53 1,742.36
Totat 1.280.83 1.732.36 |

5RM Recycling Private Limnited ceased ta be arelated panty from May 23, 2024 carespondingly transactions upto the said penod are mentioned sbove and balance is given as st March 31,
Mr. Sunll Kumar Shah held position as CFO wef Saptember 5, 2024 till 30th June 2025

54 Financial Instrument

Fi ial Risk M. Objectivas and Policles
The Company's principal ki i other than derivati ise Inans and Ings, trade and other p sacurily deposi P iabillthes. The main purp ot
thees financial labilltes is to finance the Cormpany's operations and to provide g Lo Support its operati The € ¥'s principal ial assets include trade and other
receivables, and cash and short-temn deposits thar denive diractly Irom lts iona, The Company also aers inlo derhat i

&, Financial Assets and Liabilities Rs. in Lakhs

As al 31 March 2028 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars
Amortised Cost FVTPL . RTPL

Assets Measured at
Invesumants - BA.23 2548 - aLa7 B3.41
Trade receivables 21,570.04 - - 13.425.42 = =
Cathand cash equivalnt 425.13 - - 1,933.47 - =
Qiher bank balances 5,143.68 - - 2,815.57 - =
Loans S0.00 - - 50.00 - =
Other financial assets 3,404.94 - - 1,419.57 = =
Total 3100750 84.23 85.48 19,844.03 8187 anAl

Liabtitles Meaaured at

B 51,799.43 - - 37,835.74 - .
Trade payables 17,111.08 = - 9,568.49 = =
Leasaliabities 174614 - - 1,882.52 - =
Chher financial liabilities 5,239.86 = - 5,829,123 = *
Tatal 77,558 51 - - ¥5.138.38 - =
~invesiment in subsidiaries canled al ¢ostin Investiment-aon-Current in nota 7 represents imvestments in equity shares and optionally ibie 2era coupon of

which afe carmisd at cost and hence are not required to b disclosed ax perind AS 107 "Financial ) Di: Hence, the have been from the abava tabla.

=\ ACCOUNTANTS |2
=\ PRt 023106N /.
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Fair Vatua Hierarchy
Tha ! b ides an analysis of iali that arg Tg initial recognitlan al fair valuw, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as described below:

Lewel 1 "Quoted pricas in an actns market: This leved of hi includ iali that are d by 1o quokad pnces junadjusted) in active markets for identical
as34ts orliabilides.

Lavel 2: 'Valuation techniquas for which the lowast level input that is significan to the fair valus measuremen is direcily of indireelly observable. This level af hlerarchy include Company's

th ter {OTC) derivative contracts and mutual funds
Levet 3: Valuarion rechnigues lor which the lowest level Input that ks significant to the fair value is
F Lassets and d a1 1air value - recurring fair value measurements

Ag
Particulars As 3t 31 March 2025
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financlal Asseis
Invastmant
Mutual Funds . 8823 R 823
8923 - 68.23
Particulars A a1 31 March 2024
Level 3
Flnancial Asses
Investmant
Mutual Funds - e1.87 - B81.687
8157 = 61.67
harket Risk
Market risk is the risk that the falr value of future cash flows of 2 ial i will fluctuate b of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises thras typas of risk: interest rate

risk, foreign curmency exchange risk and equity price sk, Financial nstruments atfected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

|a) Inerasi Rate Risk
Interast rata risk is the risk that the fair value or huture cash Hows ol 3 fi will because ol changes in market interest ratas, The Company’s exposure 1o ihe nsk of
changes in markeal Interast rates ralates primarily bo the Company's long-temm debt abligatlons waih floating interest rares.

The Company manages its mierest rate risk by having a balanced partfolo of fised and variable rate Loans and borrowings. To mitigate intarest rate risk, the Company's regulary monitor's

markel mavemnent and [t wnpact onthe Company's taken ngs and ac gly take action.

The following table he itnilny £0 3 bly possible change in interest rtes on that partlon of loans and bormowings alfacted, after the impac| ol hadga accaunting. With
all other variablas held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is attactad Ihrough Ihe impact on Iloating rate bormowings, as lollows:

{I) Exposure to Interast Rate Risk Bs. inlakhs
Partigulars As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024
Barrowing beanng fiked rate of interest 743438 8,506.94
Barrowing bearing variable rate of imerest 46,505.06 31.328.81
Tatal 53.739.44 47.835.75
) Sensithity Analysls

The assumad movement in basis points for e interest rate sensitivity analysis |5 hased on tha cumently observable market anvironment, showing 4 signiicantly gher volatitity than in prior
years
Az, in Lakhs

Partlculars As st 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Ierese Rate - Increass by 50 basis paints
Iterest Rate - Decreaze by 50 basis points

[b) Foreign Currancy Risk
Foraign currency risk is the risk that the tair value or fulure cash Mows of an sxposure will fluctuste because of changes in forsign exchange ratas. The Company’s exposure to Iha rlsk of
in toresgn esich rates ralates primarlly to the C 5 i ivithes [when revanue o Expense is d d b & Foreig) ¥,

The veax Forward C: to hedge its Agks associated wit | I Formign ieg and imterest rate relating to foreign ¥ certain firm i and
snme farecosted transactions related to forelgn currency trade. The use of Forward Contracls is govemnad by Company's overall siralagy. Tha Company does not use forward Conlracts for
apecylalive pUIproses.
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N Esp to Foveign C: Risk

Az, InLakhs

Particulars Farsign Curfent year Currenl year e OIS yaar Previous year
Currency FC Amount in Rs. FC Amount in Rs.

Trade Receivabiles uso 38 29033 1.7 140.65
Other Financial Assets uan 17.28 1,453,249 25.87 2,131.00
Other Financlal Assets EUR 295 274,39 0.44 34,44
Diher Financial Assets SEK 0.53 4,90 = -
Trade Payablas EUR 170 153.40 0.45 39.58
Trade Fayables GBP - - .66 7110
Trade Fayablas UsD 48,40 402453 6250 5,224 57
Orher Financial Lizbilities usp 010 873 .01 0.45
Tatal 7242 £.249.57 109.56 8,451.03
{il) Sensitivity Analysis

Rs. inLakhs

|Particulars As at 31 March 2025
INRIUSD - Increase by 50 =20.90 -21.72
INR/USD ~Dacraase by 5% 20.90 21.72
. Credit Risk

Cradit rigk i3 the risk of financial logs arising from counterparty failure 1o repay or service debt a¢conding o the comtraciual tarms or obligati Credit risk both the direct risk of
default and the risk of ioration of credit aswell as lon rlsks
Financial insiruments (hat are subject 10 concentrations ol credit nsk, principally consist of trade recsivables, loans and advances and other financial assels. The Comparny sinves to
promptly identify and reduce concems about collection due to a foration in (he f diians and others of [ts main i3 by regular iboring their situation based on
thetr tinancial candition.
P As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March-2024

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank balances other than above
Otherrecenables

Loans

Qther financial assets

Tolal

i} Trade Aeceivable
For Trade raceivables apaing refef nots 13.

(1L of Trade R
Favenle from tap customer is S.85 % (Pravious Year 4.12 %), hence nane ol tha customers quality to be in the disclosure bracket.
Trom rop five i= 19,86 % [Previous Year 17 65 %)

i) Expwctad Credit Lossas:
The sllowance for Ifstime axpected credit loxs on Trade Racsivables for the year ended March 31, 2025 was INR (S.05) Lakhs

in ECL an Trade recaivabl As, in Lakhs
Partlculars As at 31 March 2025 Asat31 Narch 2024
Balance at the beglnning ol the year 21.07 53.45
Loss Allowance measured at life time expected credit loss -5.05 111.60
Balanca at the and of reporting periad 206.02 211.07

D. Liquidity Risk

The Company manages its Uquidity fisk Lo malntain adequate net working capitsl by constantly managing projected cash llaws. Beyond affective working ¢2pltal and cash management, tha
Company mitigates liquidity risk by contracting with finencisl institulions with respect to bank, dralts or b ility ag for efficient management of funda,

Maturity Tabla for Fnanclal Liabdities

Far Gurrent Year RAs. in Lakha
Particulara Less than 1year 1-2 Years 2-3Years More than 3Years

Bomowlngs 21,095 5,123 3,954 22,768 53,738
Trade Payables 17,111 - - - 17,111
Qiher Financial Liabilities 5,360 - - - 5,380
Laase Liabllty b o2 429 357 1,745
Tatal 44,724 5.515 4,383 23334 77.957
For Pravious Year Az, In Lakhs
Particulars Less than 1 year 1- 2 ¥ears 2-2¥ears Mard than 3 Years Toral

Borrowings 22,040 5,169
Trads Payables £,588 -
Ckther Financial Liabiinies 5828 -
Lesse Liahilty a2e 339
Total 37,784 5807
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E. Capital Managament
The Company's objectives when managing capital ars to:

In order to Maintain of adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, returmn capltal to shareholders, 1szue new shares or seil agsals o

reduce debl,

Congistent with othars In the industry, the Campany monitors capital an the hasls of 1he lallowing paaring ratio:

- Debt {Long term ings, Short Term B
= dlyided by Tetal ‘Equity” {as shawn in the balance shear)

Es and Current

ol Long Term Borrawings)

The Company's strategy is to mantain an optimum gaaring ratle. Tha gearing ratios were as follows:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

As. InLakhs

55 Cisclosura ac per Section 186{4) of C

Act, 2013-Loans.

Total Borowings 53,739.43 3703574
Lexs: Cashand cash i 433,13 1.333.47
Net Debits (A) 53,300.30 35.202.27
Total Equity [B) 7140768 76.,654.70
Capital Gearlng Rato (A8} 0.75 0.47

RAz. in Lakhs

As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2029

Opening Balance 50,00 -
Loans glyan duning the yaar - 50.00
Loans repaid during the year = =
Tolal 50.00 50.00
*The laan ks gven to 15 wholly awned subsidiary, namely Gravwnd Realty Privare Limited, for the purpose of [ts principal business activities.

38 Disclasure as per 32ction 186{4) of © Act, 2013 -invest Rs. inLakhs
Particulars 0
Investment in Subsidiaries =
Opsning balance 14,057.23 7,405,854
Investmerd during the year 6,650.82
Exchange difference 2.07 0.87
Irarestraent sodd during the year
Total 14,059.30 14.057.23

Rs. in Lakhs

57 Loan: and Advances givan to Related Parties

fg an 31 March 2025 A% a1 31 March 2024
Typa of Borrawer
Amount outstanding Ty of Toral Amount outstanding *a of Total
Wholly Owned Subsidiary 50 100.00% B0 100.00%
Total B0 100.00% 5O 100.00%

"The loan is given to its wholly owned subs|diary, namely Grownd A=ally Private Limited, for the purp

FapayMEnt

58 Securlty of Current Assets Against Borrawings

of ils princip

The Company has avaited various ings from fi

baen offarad as security,

As par the dad Schadul2 il of the Companles Act, 2013, comp are req 1o disclose whather b

whether q y or of current assets filed with banks are in agresment with the books of accounis
Tha G ity thal the |

achivitlas without specifying any 1erms or period of

and banks during the reporing penod. In accordance with the terms of these borrowings. canaln currant assals have

ings Irom banks or Imancial inslingions are sacured by current assets and

liled with banks a4 In Jgreamant with the bocks of accounts. Any discrepancies, if any, are duly raconcilad and disclosed.

HAeconciliation b Cufrant Assets a5 par Quarterly filed with Bank and Current Assat a3 per Books af Account Rs. inLakhs
| Particulars 01 2024-25 2 2024-25 032024:25 04 2024-25
Cument Assets as per Quarterly Return led with Bank. 26,639.73 34,292 48 42,519.00 45,085 12
Add:
Lesst
Difference in Inventary Yaluation - - 184,39
Diterence In Inventory Valuation - Goods in Transit - - 231.01
Provision tor Diminution of Yalue of Obhsolele Inventory 66.61 - 60.71
Dilferencein Value of Trade Receivables -124.32 - 136.86
Diffarancs in Value of Trade Payables
Currant Assats as par Books of Account™ 26,573.12 34.416.80 42,458.29 A3,424.86
* Currant Aasets only includes walus of Inventory, Trade Recsivables {net of ad from ) and Trade Payables (net of advances w yvendora]
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53 Registration of Charge
During the Anancial year 2024-25, the Company has repaid cerain sacurad borrowings in full, resulting w tha satisfaction of corresponding charges. Howeaver, the intimatian of satisfacion
nas not yet basn filed with the Regi o C [RoC| a5 required under Saction 82 ol tha Companies Act, 2013

However the Inimalion of salistacuon of chargs shall be filad with the Registrar ol sormpany In tarm of section B2 of tha compames act, once NOCS

banks.

The redressal 15 at banics end and shall be affected upon raceipt of spproval fof cancallation of duplicate charges registarad by bank

Particulars for delzy in Regstration af Chagge

tetter will be

d from

Particutars Ragfatrar Office | Periad Reason for Qelay
Canara Bank ROC gurgacn Mora than oneyear | Require 1o b satisfied a5 on date, requast for satisfaction glven to bank
Hdfe Bank Limied ROC gurgaon Morethan oneyear | Aequire tobe sausfled as on date, request tor satisfaction given 1o bank
Icicl Bank Limited ROC gurgaon Morethan oneyear | Require tobe satisfied a5 on date, request far satistachon given to bank
Indlan Bank ROC gurgaon More than onsyaar | Require 1o be salisfled as on date, request for satisfaction gven to bank
Indfusingd Bank Lid ROC gwgacn  |Morethananeyear | Require tobe satisfied as on date, raquest for satlsfaction given to bank
Kunak Mahindra Bank Limited ROC gurgaon Mare than cneyaar | Require tobe satisilad as on date, request for satisfaction ghien to bank
80 Ratio Analysis
As at As ot
Partlculars Numwarator/Denominatar® Chungein% Reazons
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
[a) Current Ratin _Current Assets 120 132 -1291%
Current Liabslities
[b] Debt-Equity Ratio IotalDepls 0.75 0.49 52.47%| Increase in Debt due to
Equity decreass in profltabilicy
[¢1 Debt Sernce Covarape Ratko Eamning for Dbt Service 290 4.13 -78,18% | Decreass i profitabliiy dua to
Interast + Installments cyclical decrease in sale price
in paper Industry without
comasponding cost decrease
[d) Return an Equity Ralia Prafit after Tax =7 14% 16.03% 144 F&% | Decrease in profitability due ta
Aerage Shareholdar's Equity cydical dacreasa In sale price
in paperindustry withaul
gonesponding cost decrease
[} Inventory turnover ratio Intal Turnover 611 213 -33.07% | Increasa in tnventory and Trade
Average Inventories | Receivables al year end In
CcLrTant yRar 85 Compared 16
year |5 due to parlodi
plant shutdawn in March 24
[1} Trade receivables mover ratio Bevenua fram aoaration 1074 1140 -5.51%
Average Trade Receivable
[E) Trada payablas turnover ratio Total Purchazes 12,73 15.08 -15.47%
Avaraga Trade Payable
[} Met capital turnaver ratio Total Tumaowver 14,07 14.47 -2 7004
Average Working Capital
[i} Met prolit ratic _Het Profit | -3 78% 5.24% -153,11% | Dacraaze in prolitabilicy due 1o
Total Turnovar cydical decreasein sale price
in paper indusiry without
conespanding cost decrease
(il Raturn on Capital employed Earning before interest and taxes -1.06% 17.56% -106.05% | Decreasd in profitabiiity due 10
Closing Capital Employed cychical decrease in sale price
Wt paper industry without
comesponding cosl decrease
{k}Heturn an investment Aelum on Invesiment 1.30% 147% -11.48%
Toal Investment

*Reference Detajls

Cuarent Assets = Total current 35565 a5 shawn In the balance sheet (ie, sum of Note 11 tv 16)
Current Liablllies = Tatal Currant Liabilities as shown in the balance sheer|i 2. sum of Note 27 1o 33)

Total Debts = Borrowngs_Non current Li:

+B : Current L

Equity = Totat Equity 5 shown in balance sheat [i.¢. sum of Note 19 & 20)

Eamnings available for DEbt Service = Profitf{loss] before 1a% 35
Inkerest + Installments = Finance cost as shown in PAL + Current
Profil atter Tax = PAT a8 shown in PAL

and

[i.2, sum ol Mote 21 & 37)

d by D

of Lang Term B

Average Shareholder's Equity = (Opening Tolal Equlty + Clasing Total Equity {as showm in balance shestiy2

Torad Turngver = Fram

as shown in PAL {i.. Note 34)

= {Opening inventary + Closing

v {as shown in balance sheetflf2 {Nota 11)

Average Trade Recsivable = [Opening Trade Receivables » Closing Trade Receivables {ax shown in balance sheetf)22 [Note 13)
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ings (.. Note 40 + Current maturitles component of Note 27)




o
=

Tatal Purchases = Purchasas as per Mote 36 {COMC) + Purch as per Mote 37 + 3 per Mote 42 (Stores and Spares & Packing Malenal)
Ayerage Trede Payable = (Opening Trade Payable + Closing Trade Payable jas shown in balance sheetfls2 {Move 29)

Avaraga Working Capital = Tolal Current assets (As defined above - Total Cument liabilitles {As deflned above]

et Prohi = Prolit aftar tax as shawn in PAL

Eaming before interest and taxes = Profit/Loss Betore Tax a5 shown In PAL plus Financa cost

Closing Capltal Employed = B Current » ings Non Cument + Total Equity + Daterad Tax Liabilities {Net) i e, sum of Note 27, 21, 19, 20 4 29)
Retum on Investmen = Interest Income + Any Galn/Logs on Changs in valua of i or aof foreign idl
Tokal Invastment = Fixgd deposits with banks + Investrent in Mutual funds + ) in subsidisrias [Equity/Deb e Mote 15 & Bank deposits
wilh imore than 12 mamihs matuniny p Mote 9+ k Mon current {Mote 7) + Irvestments Current (Mote 12)
C5R Enpendiura
Hs.in Lakhs
Paricuar
Amount required tabe spent by the company during the year 235.77 116.00
Amaount of expandilure incurred 151.12 20%.18
Total of previous years i J -88.49 .30
Her shartalls {sucess) atihe end of the year -4.24 -pa.ag
Details of ralated party I ap.c |baation Lo lon 8 company lled by the n relation b CSR
| evpendilure as per relevant Accoundng Standard 2 o
Where a provision 15 made with respect to a liablity incued by antering into a igation, the Inthe
provision dwing the year
In 202425
Nature of 58 activities
As per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, a company mesling tha appllcanta threshold nesds to spand at least 2% of its average net profit for the diately p ding thrae |
VBAIS Of soclal ibility {CSR} activities. The haz spenton ing activilies
In 2024-25:

1. Pramating health care including preventive health cars
2. Skitl Davalopment

3. Sports Promotion

4. Ervlronment Sustalnablity

5. Paverty Eradication

G Pural Devalopmeni

7. Awallability of Crinking Water

In2022-24;

1 Eradicatding hunger

2. Promaoting health care inchuding preventive health care

3. Making available sale drinking watar

4. Promating education

5. Promating Animal Welizre

B. Promoting Social Welfars

7. Providing refief 1or Nood victims

8. Measures for the benafit of defemce parsonnel

3. Trainlng 1o px ural sports, aati y recognized sports, F pic spors and Clympic 3pons
10, Measures to support or bensfit the undarprivileged people
11, Providing suppod to Ex-Servicemen and families

Cther v Discl as per the C i Act, 2013

[i.] Title deeds of Immovable Propeny

The Title deeds of Ihe immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the legse agreemenis are duly exacuted in favour of the lessee| are held in the neme
afthe Company.

{li.] Dnsclosure whether Lair value o i property is based on the ian by a Aegh Valuer
The company does not have any investment property,

i} Disclozure wheiher reyaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Inrangibles Assets is based on Ihe valuatlan by a Reglstered Valuer
The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets during Financial Yesr 2024-25 and 2023-24

tiv.} Disclosures of loans or advances in the naturs of loan grantad to promolers, directors, KMPs, RPs
Disclosure has heen glven under Nots No, 56 & 57

[w.} Capital work In progress:
ReterMoteno. 4

vt} Intangible Assats under Devalopment
Refer Nolene. 6

fvii.) Details of Benami Proparty hatd
The Company does not hold any benami property and no proceeding have been iniated on or are pending aganst the company for holding benami property under the Benami Transaction
{Prohibition) Act, 1588 (45 of 1986) and Aules mads thereunder.

[vifi.) Company has b ings from banks of | lal b lons on the basis of sacuniy of currant azssts
The Company has borfowings from banks on the basis of security of curment assets. The quarterly relurns of filed by the with such banks are in agreement with the books
of account of the Company,

{ie ) Wikt Defaulter
The Company has nor been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or flnancial institution or g or any harity of any other lender.

ix.) Relationship with Struck off Companias

There ars no ians with the Comp whose name are struck off under Section 248 of The Companies Act, 2013 or Saction S60 of the Companies Act, 1956 during Financial Year
2024-2% and 2023-24
[¥i.} Registration of chargas of salisfaction wilh Regi al G beyond the pericd

There were no charge ar satislaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the stawtory perlod a5 at March 31 2035,
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{xii.} Campliance wih number ol layers ol companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prasedbed undar clause (87) of Section 2 of tw Companies Act, 2012 read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017 during Financlal Yaar 20:24-25 and 2023-24.

il | Compllance with app Sch Jof "
The Board of Directors has approved the schems of arrangament babwen Khanna Paper Mills Lmajtad (Camergad Company), Khanna Fiber Private Limited {Rasultng Company-1) and Growng
FReally Prvate Limitad (Rasulting C: 2} and their respecti |dars and i on March 11, 2023, The applleation for approval of this scheme of demeraer has been filed with
Wational Company Law Tribunal (Chandigarh) on March 22, 2023, The effect of such Schems of Arangements has not been accounted fof n the books of account of the Company “in
accordance with the Scheme’ and “In aceordance with acCounting standards’ as the scheme of amangement |s [n the process of app with the Nan Company Law Tribunsl
[Chandigarh) a5 on ihe date ol signing of the financial statements

[wiw. ) Utilisation ol B fundzand share p

2} The Company has not advanced of loansd or invasted funds {sither borrowed funds or share pretiam of 3y other sourca or Xind of funds) 1o any ther persens ar stities including foreipn
enrities i Itaries) with rhe ing {wheth ded in wriling or otherwlsa) Lhat the i iarigs shall direcily of indirectly land or invest in alher persons or enkities
identifi=d In any manner whatsoever by or on bahalf of company {ullimate baneficiary) or provide any guarantee, security of tha to or on behalf of the ultimate benehcianias.

b The Comnpany has nar received any fund Irom  any ather persons or entilies including foraign entlties {Funding parties) with the Al heth ded in wiiting o otherwise] that
the company shall whather directly orindirectly lend o invest in othar persons of entitias identified n any manner whatsoaver by o on behalf of funding party (uirimate baneficiary] or provide

any guaraniee, security or thedike on behalf of the ulimate beneficianes.

Gov. ) Undisclosed Income
During the yaar the Company has nok disclosed of sierenderad, any income other than thi income recognised i the books of intha tax under Income Tax Acr, 1961

Iwvi } Dietalls of Cryplo Currency of Yimual Currency

The Company has rot traded or i d in Crypto or Yirual Currency during Financial Year 2024-25 and 20:23-24.

Changa+d dus to Prior Perlod Errors

During the preparation of the fi | Ior the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company [dentihed thal one Isasa contract entered into duning FY 2022-24 was omitted from
accounting under Ind AS 116-Leases. This resulted i the understatement of Righl-ol-Use [AOU) assats, Lease liabilities, Depraciation, finance costs, interest income on RO of Securiry
Depositand a P impact on R d Earnings &z at 31 March 2024

The iror has been d P ly in d with Ind AS 8- A& ing Policies, Changes in At ing Estl and Errors, by ing the camp

Information bar FY 2023-24

Impact of Restatement
{a)impact on Balance Shext{as at March 31, 2024
Rs. in Lakhs
s ’mmw‘;l Adi o Restated as at
RpontEa sy ustme 31 March 2024
Particulars March 2024 .
Right of L'se Assals 1,054,682 7E5.07 1,820849
Lease liabllities - Non Current -872.10 -474.04 -1,746.14
Leask lisbilites - Currert ~105.53 -30.85 136,38
Secunity Depasis 107 -0.08 101
Retained Earmnings 5285826 -138.688 52,819.38
{b}Iimpact on Statemant of Proflt and Loss (lor the year snded March 31, 2024)
s, in Lakhs
As previously =] e
reportad for tha year Adfustmant
sndad 31 March 2024
Particulars
Deprecialion on ROU Assers 106.06 19953 305,58
Finance Costs (Inter=st on Lease Liabiliges) 53,13 90,70 153.83
Inerest Income {Interest an Security Deposit) -0,01 Eikili] -0.01
Rent Expenaes {Cash Flow Effect) -141.34 -151 36 =352.70
Profit &frar Tax 11,527.73 -136 88 11,388.87
{c) Impact an Statament of Changes in Equity [far the year ended March 31, 2024} - Retained Earmings
s Inlakhs
s praviously .
Adjustment Restated
Partlculars raparted !
COpening Balance 41,430,52 -
Prodit for the year 11,5775 -
Changes due 10 Pror Pericd Errors . -138.58
Cloging Balanca 52,950.26 -138.68
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64 Contingent Assers
The Company had lodged an insurance claim of about 180 Croras, out of which 3103 Croras was raceived In 2013, Purauant to arbitral proceedings and
subsequent directions of the Hon'ble Delhi High Court, the Company received ®17 Crores during FY 2023-24, which has baen racognised [n the financial
staternents. The Company has also sought modification of the Court’s order for inclugion of interest on the 17 Crores received, as the sarlier arbitral award
had grantad interest and the Court"s order did not expressly set aside such antittement.
The clairn of ¥ 36.17 Crores togethar with related interest of Rs 44,16 er i3 currently under litigation/appeal, and the inflow of economic banefits will depend
upon the outcome of such procaadings, In accordance with Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels”, no asset has been
recognised in respect of this balance claim, and the $ame has besn disclosed a8 a canhingent asset.

£5 Ae-classification) ingS| of pravious year figures
Brever necessary to canform to the current year's presentation.

RALKE.

Rahul Khanna
Managing Directar
DIN: 00067173

Previous year fgures have baan reclassifind/recast/restatad

For & an Behalf of Mall of Board of Direciors.
Himizh Hagpal & Company APER
Chanered Accountants
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